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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHEE

Dear shareholders,

| became the substantial shareholder of the Company since obtaining,
through Champion Dynasty Limited, the controlling interest from Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited since August last year. Therefore, last year was
a year of a substantial change in the Company. Firstly, it is time for us to
have a review on the results and businesses of the Company for the past
year, and we will apply new management approach and new thinking to

meet future changes and challenges.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the year, loss attributable to the owners of the Company surged
to HK$11,585,000, while a profit of HK$13,094,000 was recorded last
year. This was mainly attributable to the share-based payment expenses
of HK$31,248,000, which could not be offset by the increase in fair value
of investment properties of HK$18,250,000 during the year. Excluding
these non-cash items, the Company would have recorded a core profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$1,413,000 for the year,
while that of last year was HK$9,294,000.

Due to the non-cash nature of the fair value change of investment
properties and the share-based payment expenses, the loss did not affect

the Group's daily normal operations and cash flows.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group's principal businesses were still investment and

finance and property investment.

Investment and Finance

During the year, pursuant to the three-year revolving facility agreement
dated 22 September 2011, a loan up to HK$300,000,000 at the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.5% per annum was lent to Fancy

Mark Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates

Holdings Limited, and was fully repaid during the year. The Company

accrued an interest income for the year in the sum of approximately
HK$4,281,000 from the revolving facility to Fancy Mark Limited, in
comparison with HK$2,843,000 last year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEBREE

After being granted the approval of the independent shareholders of the

Company on 20 November 2012, a new three-year revolving facility up
to HK$220,000,000 at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 2.5% per
annum was lent to Champion Dynasty Limited. The Company accrued an
interest income for the year in the sum of approximately HK$594,000

from the revolving facility to Champion Dynasty Limited.

On the other hand, the investment in 2 floating rate notes for investment
purpose in USD-denominated principal contributed an interest income of
approximately HK$1,644,000 for the year, comparing with HK$3,803,000
last year. A floating rate note in the principal sum of USD5,500,000
matured and was redeemed during the year. The remaining floating rate

note with a principal amount of USD5,000,000 will mature in 2014.

Property Investment

As at 31 December 2012, the Group held 31 car parking spaces with
5 adjoining spaces and a carport basement situated in Wanchai and
Central. The relevant occupancy rate was approximately 83.8% with rental
income amounted to about HK$1,852,000 for the year. The rental income
represented an increment of 5% as compared to last year. Besides, an
unrealised fair value gain on investment properties in the amount of
HK$18,250,000 was recorded during the year.

NEW MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND NEW
THINKING

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan and | joined the board of directors of the Company
and became executive directors after the change in the shareholding
structure of the Company in August last year. Following the resignations
of Mr. Kong Chi Ming, former chairman of the board, and Mr. Leung Wing
Pong, former chief executive officer of the Company, as executive directors
in September last year, | took the challenge of becoming the chairman
and Mr. Cheng assumed the role of deputy chairman and chief executive

officer of the Company.

Dr. David Chain Chi Woo, Mr. Lam Yat Fai, Mr. Leung Yun Fai and Mr.
Lam Kwong Wai, being three former independent non-executive directors
and former management, subsequently resigned in January and March
2013 respectively. Mr. Lin Jiang, being the non-executive director, and
Mr. Yau Chi Ming, Mr. Huang Liang and Mr. Mai Yang Guang, being
the independent non-executive directors, joined the board in February

this year. The new composition of the board and management of the

Company will bring new thinking and strategies into the Company,

allowing the Company to seize any future opportunity and meet upcoming

challenges.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

On behalf of the board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to all the former directors and management for their
valuable contribution during their offices, and welcome the above newly-
appointed directors to join the Company. With their extensive experience
and impressive qualifications, I, together with Mr. Cheng, the chief

executive officer, will bring the Company into a new era of development.

PROSPECTS

Champion Dynasty Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
acquired approximately 62.26% interest in the total issued share capital
of the Company from Chinese Estates Holdings Limited in August last
year. Subsequently, Champion Dynasty Limited had gradually reduced its
holding in order to enlarge the shareholder base and therefore optimise
the shareholding structure of the Company. As at 31 December 2012 and
the date hereof, Champion Dynasty Limited held 52.69% and 37.23%,

respectively, of the total issued share capital of the Company.

I consider that the substantial loss of HK$11,585,000 for the year was
mainly caused by share-based payment expenses of HK$31,248,000,
which was a non-cash and non-recurring item which did not affect the

Group's daily normal operations and cash flows.

The new management has conducted a detailed review of the operations
of the Group with a view to developing corporate strategy to enhance its
existing business and asset base and broaden its income stream, which
may include further investing in and expansion of the existing business of
the Group when appropriate opportunities arise. At this moment, G-Prop
Services Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (which
possesses a money lenders license granted by the Licensing Court of
Hong Kong) will engage in the money lender business in Hong Kong in
order to diversify the Group's income sources and business scope. In
addition, the Group has entered into negotiations with various parties
on certain possible investment opportunities and carried out feasibility
studies on these possible projects. These possible projects are not limited
to the existing business of the Group, but mainly encompass promising

industries such as new energy, environmental protection, biotechnology,

innovative medical technology and hi-technology. As at the date hereof,

the Group has not yet finalised any of these possible projects, nor has it
concluded any acquisition. If any of such projects realises, the Company

will make further announcement thereof as and when appropriate.

Meanwhile, the Group pursues its progressive and flexible business
model. At the same time, the Group has been continuing to cope with the
changes and challenges of its future business in a careful and cautious

manner.

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2012

AARBUBEEARESERLEHENES

MAEREEETAFLEENERMMRARL
B EREEEMBERR LHMFALMEE S
BB MBI EEEAR AR BITERASE
FEERRRARRGFHHN—He

2

REFNA A FEE ZRR T Champion Dynasty
Limitedft 2 AB R £ B RG QA2 HE TR
#962.269%E 7% ° H 14 Champion Dynasty Limited
RECRREERIEMBRRE B Z P RIF AT
B AT ——F+=-A=-+—AMBEDR
FAE2MEHEITRA 252.69%HM37.23%K) A2
AR

RARRBRNEEHEAEE,585,0008 T2E
ZEHN—HIRE RIFLEMENREER T
31,248,000/8 iRk AT eV EEERELE
MIRETR e

MEREEEEEET TARMNEBBRE - LABIET
RAER RBARANEBEEEER  UKE
FARA R - SR Al BIEE S EH e LR RS
—SREMARASERGEB -BK AQF
)2 & [ /& A 51G-Prop Services Limited (&%
hBRROE BE R T HUE AR IR ) R BB L& E A
EBAEINRA TR R AR A EE 2 ¥ BEES
TALER UM EEBHE LA AR ETEAR
B A T#ITES  WHATREIREIEB BT T
AATHRE - Z L AR RETHEA (TRREER
BEB)FZHRIER BR  EWEM - 815
BERSHHEEANRTE AN SEYE
EEMMETEERE RWETE - EREEA R
B RABHUERERGFE—SAMBEBER

RIES - SR B B E RN TS MR 28 1
A R EDUAR T R0 1L O TR R R B0 R SR S TS A 2
BB




Chairman’s Statement

EFE/REE

APPRECIATION B

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the ANARBUBEARIBEZRBAZH URTEER
shareholders of the Company for their continued support, and our fellow — B AL B HE & &R 2 A TBUAR LG -
Directors and those who have worked for the Group for their valuable

contributions.

On behalf of the board RERESE
Cheung Wai Kuen FE
Chairman RIZRE

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013 BB ZE-=F=A=-1+N\AH
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Financial Operation Review
B K& B

RESULTS

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 (the "Year") was
HK$8,370,000 (2011: HK$8,410,000), a slight decrease of HK$40,000
when compared with last year. Gross profit for the Year amounted to
HK$8,254,000 (2011: HK$8,248,000), a slight increase of HK$6,000 as
compared with last year.

Interest income generated from floating rate notes (“FRN"), loan to Fancy
Mark Limited (“Fancy Mark”) and loan to Champion Dynasty Limited
(“Champion Dynasty”) was HK$1,644,000 (2011: HK$3,803,000),
HK$4,280,000 (2011: HK2,843,000) and HK$594,000 (2011: Nil)

respectively.

For property leasing, rental income for the Year amounted to
HK$1,852,000 (2011: HK$1,764,000). An increase in fair value of
investment properties of HK$18,250,000 was recorded in the Year
compare with an increase of HK$3,800,000 in 2011.

No exchange gain attributable to other income was recorded for the Year
(2011: exchange gain of HK$2,658,000 included in the other income).

COSTS OF SALES AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES

For the Year, the costs of sales were approximately HK$116,000, a slight
decrease of HK$46,000 or 28.4% when compared with last year. It
was because of the cessation of payment to sales staff of a subsidiary
of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”) from 6 August
2012.

For the Year, the administrative expenses were approximately
HK$7,680,000, an increase of HK$4,795,000 or 166.2% when compared
with last year. The significant increase in administrative expenses was
resulted in the salaries, office rental expenses and depreciation etc., arising
from new employments of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the rent of office
since August 2012. In addition, the professional services fee arising from
the purchase of the controlling interest of the Company from Chinese
Estates by Champion Dynasty (the current substantial shareholder of the
Company), the execution of shareholder's loan and the adoption of the
share option scheme 2012 during the Year were the other reasons for

such increase of administrative expenses.
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Financial Operation Review

B 5 A5 [ R

(LOSS) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

For the Year, loss attributable to owners of the Company surged to
HK$11,585,000 (2011: profit of HK$13,094,000). Even though there
was an increase of HK$18,250,000 in fair value of investment properties,
the Company recorded a substantial loss for the Year which was mainly
attributable to share-based payment expenses regarding to the share
option granted by the Company on 18 December 2012. The fair value
changes on investment properties and share-based payment expenses
were non-cash items which did not affect the Group's daily normal
operation and the cash flows. The basic and diluted loss per share for the

Year was HK0.48 cents (2011: earnings per share of HK0.54 cents).

CORE PROFIT

The major non-cash items for the Year were the increase in fair
value of investment properties of HK$18,250,000 (2011:
HK$3,800,000) and the share-based payment expenses HK$3 1,248,000
(2011: Nil). The core amount attributable to owners of the Company was
turned from loss to gain of HK$1,413,000 (2011: HK$9,294,000) when

the major non-cash items were excluded.

increase of

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's total net asset attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$398,446,000 (2011: HK$487,536,000),
showing a decrease of HK$89,090,000 or 18.3% compared with
last year. The decrease comprised the loss retained for the Year of
HK$11,585,000 plus the payments of dividend of HK$111,699,000,
minus an increase in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
of HK$2,946,000 and a new item of share options reserve of
HK$31,248,000.

Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
December 2012 was HK16.41 cents (2011: HK20.08 cents).
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Financial Operation Review

INVESTMENT AND FINANCE

A FRN matured during the Year. As at 31 December 2012, another FRN
retained by the Group under available-for-sale financial assets was in
principal amount of USD5,000,000 with maturity date in 2014. The
interest rates were calculated with reference to the LIBOR. In addition,
pursuant to three-year revolving facility agreement dated 22 September
2011, a loan up to HK$300,000,000 at HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum
was lent to Fancy Mark and was fully paid up during the Year. Moreover, a
loan up to HK$220,000,000 at HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum was lent to
the Champion Dynasty in accordance with the three-year revolving facility
agreement dated 27 September 2012. No hedging for interest rate and
foreign currency were subsisted during the Year.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of the FRN amounted
to HK$38,072,000 (2011: HK$76,886,000) and the loan to Champion
Dynasty amounted to HK$220,000,000 (2011: loan to Fancy Mark
amounted to HK$300,000,000) representing 9.5% and 55% of the total
assets of the Group respectively.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 were 2,428,255,008.

DEBT AND EQUITY RATIO

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December 2012 and
2011.

The Group continued to maintain a sound capital and cash position. Time
deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2012 was approximately
HK$86,769,000 (2011: HK$75,650,000). The majority of the Group's
income for the Year was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and United
States Dollars and no hedging for non-Hong Kong Dollars assets or

investments had been made during the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, no assets were pledged by the
Group to secure any banking facilities and the Group did not have any

obligations under banking facility documentation.
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Financial Operation Review

B 5 A5 [ R

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material capital commitment and contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Total interest income included the interest income from investment and
finance recorded in revenue and bank interest income recorded in other
income for the Year. Total interest income was HK$7,014,000 (2011:
HK$7,225,000), representing a decrease of 2.9% from last year. It was
mainly due to the decrease in interest income from time deposits and
FRN for the Year, even though the interest income from loan to Champion
Dynasty was added. There was no finance cost (2011: Nil) during the

Year.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed 8 staff members
(2011: Nil), which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) were
excluded. The total staff cost excluding Directors’ emoluments for the
Year was approximately HK$15,405,000 (2011: HK$1,041,000) which
was included the share-based payment expenses of HK$13,392,000.
A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 15 February
2002 and expired on 14 February 2012. In the beginning of the Year, no
exercisable share option was outstanding. In addition, the Company had
adopted a new share option scheme on 11 October 2012. The Company
had granted an aggregate of 168,000,000 share options carrying the
right to subscribe for the nominal ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company, representing approximately 6.92% of total of 2,428,255,008
shares issued share capital as at 18 December 2012. No share option
was exercised during the Year. Therefore, there was an aggregate of
168,000,000 share options which had not been exercised as at 31
December 2012.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation had been carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer, in respect of
the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2012 and that
valuation's report was used in preparing 2012 final results. Property
valuation as at 31 December 2011 was carried out by B.l. Appraisals
Limited. The valuation was based on either direct comparison approach
assuming each of these properties is capable of being sold in its existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant markets,
or investment method by taking the current passing rents and the

reversionary income potential of such properties into account.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$50,400,000 as at
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$32,150,000), an increase in fair value
of HK$18,250,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for the Year.
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EEEHRES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) are pleased to present to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in notes 7 and 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities as at 31 December 2012 are set out in notes 37 and 18 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 51 of this report.

The dividend for the Year is the special dividend of HK4.5 cents per share
paid on 14 August 2012 (2011:
HKO.2 cents). The Board do not recommend any payments of final
dividend for the Year (2011: HKO.1 cent).

aggregate interim and final dividend

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on page 130 of this report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in note

16 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the investment properties held by the Group as at 31
December 2012 is set out in the summary of investment properties on

page 132 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

page 54 of this report.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), is Nil (2011: HK$56,116,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman)
(Appointed on 14 August 2012)

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 14 August 2012)

Mr. Kong Chi Ming (Resigned on 3 September 2012)

Mr. Leung Wing Pong (Resigned on 3 September 2012)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lin Jiang (Appointed on 1 February 2013)
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Resigned on 8 March 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Appointed on 20 February 2013)

Mr. Huang Liang (Appointed on 20 February 2013)

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Appointed on 20 February 2013)
Mr. Lam Yat Fai (Resigned on 8 March 2013)

Mr. Leung Yun Fai (Resigned on 8 March 2013)

Dr. David Chain Chi Woo (Resigned on 1 January 2013)

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Cheung
Wai Kuen (“Mr. Cheung”), Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (“Mr. Cheng"), Mr. Lin
Jiang, Mr. Yau Chi Ming (“Mr. Yau"), Mr. Huang Liang (“Mr. Huang") and
Mr. Mai Yang Guang (“Mr. Mai") will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE(S)'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Number of Shares

ROBE

Ordinary Underlying

Name of Directors Shares Shares Total

EEER ZER HERH a8y

Mr. Cheung 1,279,499,671 1,279,499,671
RELAE

Mr. Cheng 300,000 48,000,000 48,300,000
o aE

Notes:

(1)  Mr. Cheung was interested in above shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) through owning of 99% entire issued capital of Champion
Dynasty.

(2) Mr. Cheng owned 24,000,000 share options of the Company. The
spouse of Mr. Cheng, being a staff of a subsidiary of the Company,
owned 300,000 Shares and 24,000,000 share options of the
Company. Pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"), Mr. Cheng was deemed to be interest in same parcel Shares
and underlying Shares which his spouse was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors,
chief executive(s) nor their associates, had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, so far as are known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following parties (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified

the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

TERRRARR]ZEFER

BEERARARITBRAERAE R
——H+ZA=1+—B ARFAREEFLHE
WGP E336(F AR 2 ERMATHE® S ﬁﬂ‘%‘
ARA] BERLABMEREIRER/EBEAR

AT ARE%IA £ 2 #E s 2)\i(§$j€$

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company: AIEEITRABRIN 0T
Number of Percentage of
Shares Issued Share
Name of Substantial (ordinary share) Capital
Shareholder R&OEE Capacity Note EEITRAE
FTERRER ZER) 514 Bt 5 Bk
Champion Dynasty 1,279,499,671 Beneficial owner 1 52.69%
EnEAA
Notes: Bt 5

(1)  Mr. Cheung is the sole director of Champion Dynasty and owns 99 % of
its issued share capital.

All the interests stated above represent long position which included
interests in Shares and underlying Shares. As at 31 December 2012, no
short position was recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors was interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the Company's businesses.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or its holding company's subsidiaries was a party to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate

during the Year.
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DIRECTORS' AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “Continuing Connected Transactions” as
mentioned below, there were no contracts of significance in relation to
the Company's business, to which the Company or any of the Company's
subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year, and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly,
a material interest, nor there were any other contracts of significance
in relation to the Company's business between the Company or any of
the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 22 September 2011, before the expiry of the previous loan
agreement dated 4 November 2008, the Company as lender made a
conditional loan agreement again with Fancy Mark as borrower, granting
a three-year revolving facility of up to HK$300 million, with Chinese
Estates acting as guarantor for repayment of the loan commenced on 3
November 2011 (the “Revolving Loan Transaction”). The Revolving Loan
Transaction was approved by the independent Shareholders at the special

general meeting held on 28 October 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had called
for loan repayments under the Revolving Loan Transaction and
HK$80,000,000, HK$80,000,000, HK$95,000,000 and HK$45,000,000
was repaid on 3 August 2012, 28 September 2012, 30 November 2012
and 12 December 2012 respectively (HK$300,000,000 in aggregate)
with accrued interests. At 12 December 2012, the Revolving Loan

Transaction had been fully repaid.

On 27 September 2012, the Company, as lender, enter into a loan
agreement with Champion Dynasty, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung, as an
individual guarantor, and ER RIZEE IR EFPR AR, as a corporate
guarantor, to grant a three-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$220
million to Champion Dynasty at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 2.5%
per annum (the “Shareholder Loan Transaction”). The Shareholder Loan
Transaction was approved by the independent Shareholders at the special

general meeting held on 20 November 2012.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd) Fr 48R3 E X 5 ()

Having reviewed the Revolving Loan Transaction and the Shareholder HEMZEBRERXIEBREERRH%E &
Loan Transaction, the independent non-executive Directors of the RE BV IEHNTEE ([BUIFNTES]) R
Company (“INED(s)"), pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules on & E R AIFE4A7TER AR ERERL S
the requirement to carry out annual review on all continuing connected  {THEFHEMZ AT (BiZ LRI E2R R 2
transactions, other than fully exempt continuing connected transactions /BRERXZEIN (E) )  ERZBERERZ S
under the Listing Rules (if any), confirmed that the Revolving Loan RBERERXFGEARNGZAER —MER 1%
Transaction and the Shareholder Loan Transaction were made in the HR—REEKI UREZSZR S ZHBERM
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, were made on  ZRIEFET MR IERBLAFREE  BFE
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant agreements %5 2 2 B8 F 55 o

governing on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor (“Independent Auditor”) was engaged to report ~ ANAF ZIZHED (B AZHKA]) SZERAE
on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with EZFEMERS LREBSCHAMASHBEM
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance  H)E 1% & TEXERI3000 [/F £ B 1515 B &5t
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial — StEBIAIMNOEBZERS | LURSR (CEBFHA)
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter 27405k [BER & E (L MARB) FratiF B E
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing 2 5 B9#Z &AM sl | 1T E - B X HAI D 3%
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. ~ Em R BIE14A 385 HEREBER BEHY
The Independent Auditor had issued their unqualified letter containing BRIFERMERZ HIEL 2 AERER - A RAIE
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected A5 38 A 2 22 | it 2 %8 37 4% BLAR A5 (1 B A o
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy

of the Independent Auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to

the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Auditor 722 B] 4% B Al B 4R 5 77 51 Al 55 14A. 3815 FE R
confirmed that the Revolving Loan Transaction and the Loan Shareholder #ZERBBREFRZZMEREERZ S
Transaction:

(i)  had received the approvals of the Board; () EEaEZgfi:

(i) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements (i) JiRIEZEBBREFRSIEBEREHRR S
2 BRI TOETT

governing the Revolving Loan Transaction and the Shareholder

Loan Transaction; and

(i) had not exceeded the caps disclosed in the previous (i) ¥ EBBELAMDFIR T ——F N A
ZFTZBERZFE-Z-ZFHhAZ=+/N\B2H
FT#tEe « FRR -

announcements made on 22 September 2011 and 28 September

2012 respectively.

Save as mentioned above, there were no other discloseable non-  B& EXCATilioh s RAFE W EEMBIE FTRA
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing connected ~ ZE{EHH I FE 2 TERERIER 5k TER B I

transactions under the Listing Rules during the Year.

Related party transactions, including the said continuing connected

transactions, entered into by the Group for the Year are disclosed in note

36 to the consolidated financial statements.

AEE AAEEETZHEALRS BEL
MFFERER S CR&EE MR RE M E36H
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

To the extent of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements which constituted continuing
connected transactions, the Company had complied with the relevant

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Remuneration package comprised salaries and year end bonuses
based on individual merits. A share option scheme was adopted by
the Company on 15 February 2002 and expired on 14 February 2012.
Hereafter, the Company adopted a new share option scheme on 11
October 2012 (the "2012 Scheme"”). The Company had granted an
aggregate of 168,000,000 share options carrying the right to subscribe
for the nominal ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company,
representing approximately 6.92% of total of 2,428,255,008 shares
issued share capital as at 18 December 2012. No share option
was exercised during the Year. Therefore, there was an aggregate of
168,000,000 share options which had not been exercised as at 31
December 2012. Details of the 2012 Scheme are set out in note 32 to

the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(i)  the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme"); and

(i) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong

Kong (the “Top-up Scheme") but it was ceased on 6 August 2012.

Both the MPF Scheme and the Top-up Scheme were defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes were managed by their

respective trustees accordingly.

The MPF Scheme was available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and
with at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in
Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the Group at 5% based on the
staff's relevant income. The statutory maximum level of relevant income
for contribution purpose is HK$25,000 per month. Staff members were
entitted to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefit was required by law to be preserved until the retirement age of
65.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The Top-up Scheme was available to those employees with basic salary
over HK$25,000 and/or years of service over 5. Contributions to the Top-
up Scheme were made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% of staff's basic
salary (depending on the length of service) less the Group's mandatory
contribution under the MPF Scheme. Staff members were entitled to
100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued returns after
completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the retirement age,
or were entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to 90% of the Group's
contributions after completing a period of service at least 3 years but less
than 10 years. The Top-up Scheme allowed any forfeited contributions
(made by the Group for any staff member who subsequently left the Top-
up Scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to be used by the

Group to offset the current level of contributions of the Group.

Particulars of contribution to these schemes are set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers amounted for approximately 51.1% and 78.9%

respectively, of the Group's total turnover for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 51.6% and 100%

respectively, of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

Fancy Mark and Chase Master Company Limited, two wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Chinese Estates, were one of the Group's five largest
customers and five largest suppliers during the Year respectively. During
the period from 1 January 2012 to 6 August 2012, Chinese Estates,
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, beneficially owned 41.93% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, is deemed as a substantial
Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules).

Apart from aforesaid, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company's issued shares) had beneficial interests in any of the

Group's five largest suppliers and five largest customers during the Year.
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ADVANCES TO ENTITIES

Pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, the Group had the Revolving
Loan Transaction and Shareholder Loan Transaction for the Year which
constituted as advances to entities. Details were set out in the Continuing

Connected Transactions section of this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of
office will expire upon the annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the Independent
Auditor for the subsequent year will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The consolidated financial statements for
the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng was reorganised as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.
Save for the above, there has been no other change in the Independent

Auditor in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Wai Kuen

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen, aged 39, joined the Company as Executive
Director in August 2012 and had been appointed as chairman of the
Board (“Chairman”) in September 2012. He has established a number of
enterprises in various industries in the PRC since 1997, including property
investment, hospital and trading business. Mr. Cheung has over 10 years
of experience in capital management and corporate management. He is
an executive director of L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited,
being a listed company on the main board of the Stock Exchange, (Stock
Code: 195) since 4 December 2009.

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan, aged 66, joined the Company as Executive Director
in August 2012 and had been appointed as deputy chairman of the Board
("Deputy Chairman”) and chief executive officer of the Company (“CEQ")
in September 2012. He was the deputy division chief of the Finance
and Planning Division of Yunnan Provincial Geology and Mining Bureau
from October 1984 to March 1986, and deputy director of the Economic
Commission of Kunming for the period from April 1986 to April 1988.
From May 1988 to 1996, he was the president of the Yunnan Branch of
Bank of Communications. Mr. Cheng was an executive director of Yunnan
Enterprises Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 455) from April 1998 to March
2006, and west China regional director of the Chinese Estates (Stock
Code: 127) from 2006 to 2010. He was appointed an independent
non-executive director of L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 195) on 23 December 2009 and re-designated as executive
director from December 2010 to September 2012. Mr. Cheng obtained
a master of Business Administration degree from the Shanghai lJiao Tong
University in 1983.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lin Jiang, aged 48, joined the Company as non-executive Director
of the Company (“NED") in February 2013. Mr. Lin has over 20 years
of experience in Economic and Financial areas. He obtained a Bachelor
degree and a Master degree of Economics from Sun Yat-sen University,
a Doctor degree of Economics from Jinan University, and finished his
postdoctoral research on Applied Economics in Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law. He is a head and a professor in Department
of Finance and Taxation of Lingnan College of Sun Yat-sen University.
Moreover, he is an expert of China National Committee for MT Education
(ZEBEEEBUMTEHNEFIEELZE D), an expert member of
Guangdong Financial Expert Advisory Committee* ( & 5 B B 5 B IR
HERABWEBE®), a guest researcher of the Taiwan Affairs Offices of
the People’s Government of Guangdong Province and Taiwan Research
Centre of Guangdong* (EREARBNAEEHRAENERA
BRFZTH L),

and Economic Committee of Guangzhou Municipal People's Congress*

a member of expert budgetary supervision of Financial

(EMMmAXRMBAEZES), an economic and social development
consultant of Dongguan Songshan Lake High-tech Industrial Development
and Management Zone Committee* ( 58 5242 Ly &= 5 5 117 2 %
BEILRZEZEE), and a special researcher of Dongguan Municipal
Government* (SRZEMZ H ARBAT) . In addition, Mr. Lin is a consultant
of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. He served as deputy

general manager in Financial Division of China Merchant Group Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Chi Ming, aged 45, joined the Company as INED in February
2013. He is also the chairman of the audit committee, and the member
of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Yau has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
corporate finance and corporate restructuring. He holds a bachelor's
degree in social sciences from The University of Hong Kong and is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising), and started his own practice
since 2012. He worked with KPMG from 1995 to 2012 and became a
partner in 2007.

*  For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(cont'd)

Mr. Huang Liang, aged 34, joined the Company as INED in February
2013. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee, and
the member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Huang has over 11 years of experience in real estate
development and properties investment areas in the PRC. He is the
executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Jinrong Enterprise
Limited* ORINTE R EE AR AA) and Shenzhen Longhua Henghe
Real Estate Development Limited* CRYITHEEEEFFMEREBR A
A]) . Mr. Huang is also the vice president of Chamber of Commerce of
Shenzhen Longhua* CRYITEEEREE ) .

Mr. Mai Yang Guang, aged 48, joined the Company as INED in February
2013. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee, and the
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Mai has over 20 years of experience in enterprise
management in the PRC. He graduated from Thermal Engineering
Department of Northeastern University in the PRC and have a bachelor's
degree in engineering. Mr. Mai is the executive director and general
manager of Shenzhen Xinyinji Enterprise Development Limited* (3T
IR EE B EFMRAF)) and the chairman of board of directors and
general manager of Shenzhen Haojiahua Investment Limited* (ORI 4F
REREARRAA).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various aspects of the business and operations of the Group are
respectively under direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are

regarded as the senior management of the Company.

* For identification purposes only
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DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF INFORMATION
OF DIRECTORS UNDER RULES 13.51(2) AND
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

In September 2012, Mr. Cheng had tendered to resign as executive
director of L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited (stock code:
195) (former name was Goodtop Tin International Holdings Limited)

with effective from 3 September 2012.

In December 2012, Dr. David Chain Chi Woo (“Dr. Chain") had tendered
to resign as INED and the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company (“Nomination Committee”) and the member of the audit
committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) and the remuneration
committee of the Company (“Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Leung
Yun Fai (“Mr. Leung ") was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in place of Dr. Chain. The above mentioned changes were

effective from 1 January 2013.

In February 2013, Mr. Lin Jiang was appointed as NED with effect from
1 February 2013. Mr. Yau, Mr. Huang and Mr. Mai, have been appointed
as INEDs, the member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Besides, Mr. Yau was
appointed the chairman of the Nomination Committee in place of Mr.
Leung. Save as the appointment of Mr. Lin Jiang, the above mentioned

changes were effective from 20 February 2013.

In March 2013, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (“Mr. Lam KW") resigned as NED;
Mr. Lam Yat Fai (“Mr. Lam YF") resigned as INED and the chairman of the
Audit Committee and the member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee; Mr. Leung resigned as INED, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and the member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Yau has been re-designated as the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Huang has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Leung. Mr. Mai
has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee in
place of Mr. Yau. The above mentioned changes were effective from 8
March 2013.

Save those changes mentioned above and in the Profiles of Directors,
there is no change of information of each Director that is required to be
disclosed under Rules 13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, since
publication of the 2012 interim report of the Company.
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OBJECTIVE

The Board together with the Group is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance so as to ensure high transparency and
protection of Shareholders’ interests in general. The Board endeavours
to ensure effective self-regulatory practices, to maintain sound internal

control system and to absorb high calibre members to the Board.

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Report is to present to
Shareholders how the Company has applied the principles in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") under Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for directing the Group, formulating overall
strategy, monitoring operating and financial performance of the Group
and overseeing the performance of the management of the Group (the
“Management”). Each Director acts in good faith for the best interest of
the Company. The Directors are collectively and individually responsible
to the Company for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are
managed, controlled and operated. They had devoted sufficient time and

attention to the Company's affairs during the Year.

Structure
The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, one NED and
three INEDs. The INEDs represent more than one-third of the Board. The

current members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman & CEO)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lin Jiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yau Chi Ming
Mr. Huang Liang

Mr. Mai Yang Guang
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Structure (cont'd)

The Directors’ biographies are available on the Company's website.
There is no relationship among members of the Board and in particular,
between the Chairman and the CEO.

At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification as
required by the Stock Exchange. The Company has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are

independent.

Before 14 August 2012, Directors (including the INEDs) were not
appointed for any specific term. After 14 August 2012, new Directors

(including the NED and the INEDs) are appointed for specific terms.

According to The International Tak Cheung Holdings Limited Act 1991
(the "Private Act’, whereas “International Tak Cheung Holdings Limited”
is the former name of the Company) under which the Company was
exempted from certain compliances with the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (the “Bermuda Companies Act"), the Directors shall not be
required to be elected at each annual general meeting, but shall (save
for any Chairman and managing Director) be subject to retirement by
rotation in such manner and at such frequency as the Bye-laws may
provide. Notwithstanding that no retirement by rotation is required for
the managing director under the Private Act or the Bermuda Companies
Act, Mr. Cheung and Mr. Cheng, as Chairman and the CEO respectively
are willing to voluntarily retire from their directorships at annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every three years by following the
Bye-laws of the Company concerning the Directors’ retirement by rotation,
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the relevant

annual general meetings.

Every Director is therefore subject to retirement by rotation either under
the Bye-laws or voluntarily, and eligible for re-election at the annual

general meetings of the Company at least once every three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Assistance to Directors in Decision Making

Throughout their period in office, the Directors have been informed
of the Group's business, the competitive and regulatory environments
in which it operates and other changes affecting the Group and the
industry it operates in as a whole. They have also been advised on
appointment of their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of
a listed company and updated on changes to the legal and governance

requirements of the Group and upon themselves as the Directors.

The Directors are given access to independent professional advice at the
Company's expense, when they deem it is necessary in order for them to

carry out their responsibilities from time to time.

To enhance the Directors’ consciousness on the importance of the
directors’ duties under common law (which is also generally applicable to
Bermuda where the Company was incorporated) and to comply with the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong),
a "Guide on Directors’ Duties” in which the general principles a director
should follow in the performance of his functions and exercise of his

powers was distributed to the Directors.

Conduct of Meetings

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be
included in the meetings' agenda. The Board is supplied with relevant
information as well as reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Group before each regular Board's meeting. At least
14 days' notice of a regular Board's meeting is given to all Directors
to provide them with the opportunity to attend the meeting. Board's
papers are dispatched to all Directors at least 3 days before the meeting
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and will
be adequately prepared for the meeting. The Management is invited to
attend the meeting to address to the Board's members’ queries. This
enables the Board to have pertinent data and insight for reaching a
comprehensive and informed evaluation as part of the Board's decision-

making process.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)

The chairman of the meetings has delegated the responsibility to the
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) for drawing up and
approving the meeting's agenda for each Board’'s meeting, taking into
account of any matter proposed by each Director for inclusion in the

agenda.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally monitored by
the chairman of the meetings who would ensure that sufficient time is
allocated for discussion and consideration of each item on the agenda.
Equal opportunities are given to each Director to express his views and

concerns.

Each Director has to declare his interest and to abstain from voting on
any Board's resolution in which he or any of his associates has a material

interest pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda.

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board's procedures, rules and regulations are
followed. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board's meeting
in sufficient details are sent to the Directors for comments and records
within reasonable time after the meeting is held. The minutes of Board's
meetings and of the Board committees’ meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary, which are open for inspection by the Directors on

reasonable notice.

Five Board's meetings were held on 9 March, 1 June, 18 July, 31
August and 27 September for the Year. The Company Secretary and the
Management had attended the Board's meetings to report matters arising
from corporate governance, risk management, statutory compliance,

accounting, finance and business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)

Individual attendance of each Director at the meetings for the Year is as

follows:
No. of
Board’s meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Directors attendance in total)

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman & CEO)

2/2 (100%)
2/2 (100%)

Mr. Kong Chi Ming (Former Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Leung Wing Pong (Former CEO)

4/4 (100%)
4/4 (100%)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Jiang N/A
2/2 (100%)

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Chi Ming N/A
Mr. Huang Liang N/A
Mr. Mai Yang Guang N/A

Mr. Lam Yat Fai
Mr. Leung Yun Fai
Dr. David Chain Chi Woo

5/5 (100%)
5/5 (100%)
5/5 (100%)

Works Performed

During the Year, besides attending the Board's meetings to consider and
make decision on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business matters, the Directors had
brought independent opinion and judgment on the Company's strategy,
performance and standards of conduct; had taken the leave where
potential conflicts of interests arose; had served on Board's committees;
had ensured that the Board maintained high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting; had carried out reviews on matters reported by
the Board's committees, and had provided adequate checks and balance
to safeguard the interests of Shareholders as a whole and the Company in

general.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Works Performed (cont'd)
During the Year, the INEDs had actively participated in the Board's
meetings, brought independent judgment and given their comments to

the information or reports submitted to the meetings.

Besides holding the Board's or committees’ meetings, in order to make
timely decision and ensure effective implementation of the Company's
policy and practice, the Board had also adopted written resolutions signed
by all Directors for making decisions on corporate affairs from time to

time.

As part of the continuing process on supervising the Company's affairs,
the Directors, acting through by the Audit Committee, had reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget in December 2012.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. In addition, the Company
has a separate written code of conduct on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for the relevant employees of the Company who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished inside information in respect of their

dealings in the securities of the Company (the “Employees’ Code").

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors and the relevant employees
(viz, the senior executives of Chinese Estates’ Group before 6 August
2012; all the employees of the Group after 6 August 2012), all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and the relevant employees had complied with the

Employees’ Code regarding securities transaction throughout the Year.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separate and not performed
by the same individual. Before 3 September 2012, Mr. Kong Chi Ming was
the Deputy Chairman with responsibility for overseeing the function of
the Board, formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company; Mr.
Leung Wing Pong was the CEO with responsibility for the overall business
and operation of the Group. On 3 September 2012, Mr. Cheung was
appointed as the Chairman and Mr. Cheng was appointed as the CEO.
This segregation is clearly established and set out in writing to ensure a
clear distinction between the Chairman's responsibility to manage the

Board and CEO's responsibility to manage the Group's business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee

and Nomination Committee with defined roles and terms of reference.

Audit Committee

Structure

The Audit Committee has been established with the role to assist the
Board in establishing formal and transparent arrangements for considering
how it will apply the financial reporting and the internal control principles
and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Independent
Auditor. It acts in an advisory capacity and makes recommendations to the
Board.

All the Audit Committee members possess diversified industry experience.

The current Audit Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Liang
Mr. Mai Yang Guang
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Function
The Audit Committee's terms of reference can be found on the

Company's website.
The major duties of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Independent Auditor, review
and monitor their independence and objectivity as well as the

effectiveness of the audit process;

(i)  to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements, reports and accounts and quarterly reports (if
applicable) of the Company, and to review any significant financial

reporting judgments contained in them; and

(i) to review and ensure the effectiveness of the Company's financial

control, internal control and risk management systems.

Conduct of Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet with the Independent Auditor at least
twice each year. As least 7 days' notice has to be given prior to any
meeting being held unless all members of Audit Committee unanimously
waive such notice. The Company prepares and delivers an information
memorandum that includes all relevant information about the meetings
to the Audit Committee members at least 3 days prior to such meetings.
During the Year, the Audit Committee’'s members reviewed the
information memorandum with due care and discussed with the financial
controller (who is also the Company Secretary) and other Management (if

necessary) during the meetings.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings on 7 February,
6 March, 3 August and 28 December 2012 with the presence of the
Management. Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary were circulated
to the Audit Committee’s members for comments within a reasonable
time after each meeting. Executed minutes were kept by the Company
Secretary and copies of the minutes were sent to the Audit Committee

members for records.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)
Individual attendance of each committee’s member at the meetings for

the Year is as follows:

No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of

Members attendance in total)

Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Chairman) N/A
Mr. Huang Liang N/A
Mr. Mai Yang Guang N/A

Mr. Lam Yat Fai (Former Chairman) 4/4 (100%)
4/4 (100%)

4/4 (100%)

Mr. Leung Yun Fai
Dr. David Chain Chi Woo

Works Performed
The works performed by the members of Audit Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(i) reviewed and considered the Group accounts and financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, and interim

accounts for 2012;

(i) reviewed, discussed and agreed with the Independent Auditor
in respect of the audit fee for the year 2012; the terms of the
engagement letters; the nature, scope of audit and reporting

obligations for the Year;

(i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's financial reporting and controls, internal control procedures

and risk management systems;

(iv) reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the

progress of compliance of the CG Code;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Works Performed (cont'd)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

()

carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions
of the Company (including those fallen outside Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules and not required to be made public, (if any) and their

financial implication in their capacity as INEDs;

reviewed the overall performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of the staff in accounting and financial reporting function, and the

training programmes and budget;

in their capacity as members of independent Board committee,
gave an independent advice to the independent Shareholders in
respect of a revolving loan facility up to HK$300 million from the

Company to the Fancy Mark;

reviewed the amendments of the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee; and

prepared and submitted to the Board an Audit Committee Report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during the
Year, presented its findings and made recommendations for the

Board's consideration.

Overall, the Audit Committee was satisfied with the condition of the

Company, including the corporate governance practices, internal control

system, the conduct of the continuing connected transactions and

adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff in

accounting and financial reporting function, and the training programmes

and budget.

On 26 March 2013, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group's accounts

and draft consolidated financial statements for the Year. Details of

this work performed by Audit Committee will be given in corporate

governance report for the financial year ending 31 December 2013 under

the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee

Structure

The Remuneration Committee has been established with the role to
assist the Board in reviewing and determining the framework or policy for
remuneration packages of the Directors and the Management, overseeing
any major changes in employee benefit structures and considering other
topics as defined by the Board.

The current Remuneration Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Huang Liang (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming
Mr. Mai Yang Guang

Function

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are summarised below:

(i) to set, review and make recommendations to the Board for

approving the Group's overall remuneration policy and strategy;

(i) to set, review and approve performance-based remuneration and
individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors and
the Management including terms and conditions of employment as
well as compensation payable due to loss or termination of office,

and dismissal or removal for misconduct; and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
NED and INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee's terms of reference can be found on the

Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee would consult the Chairman, Deputy
Chairman and/or the CEO about its proposals on remuneration of other
Executive Directors and seek internal and external professional advices if

considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 28
December 2012 to consider and approve the annual remuneration of the

Directors for the Year.

Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting for the

Year is as follows:

No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of

Members attendance in total)

Mr. Huang Liang (Chairman) N/A
Mr. Yau Chi Ming N/A
Mr. Mai Yang Guang N/A

Mr. Leung Yun Fai (Former Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yat Fai
Dr. David Chain Chi Woo

1/1 (100%)
1/1 (100%)
1/1 (100%)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least one each year. As least
7 days' notice has to be given prior to any meeting being held unless all

members of Audit Committee unanimously waive such notice.

The Company prepares and delivers meeting papers that include all
relevant information about the meeting to the Remuneration Committee
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by the
Company Secretary were circulated to the Remuneration Committee
members for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting.
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of the

minutes were sent to the Remuneration Committee members for records.

Remuneration Policy

Before 14 August 2012, as the Executive Directors were employees of
the subsidiaries of Chinese Estates, the Company's former controlling
company, so they were not entitled to any emoluments of the Company
but a nominal annual remuneration of HK$10,000 approved by the
Remuneration Committee as a reward for their contribution to the Group.
After 14 August 2012, the newly appointed Executive Directors are
entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$150,000, subject to annual
review with reference to their duties and responsibilities as well as the

prevailing market condition.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

Remuneration Policy (cont'd)

In September 2012, after resignations of former Deputy Chairman
and former CEO, the Chairman and the CEO had becoming sufficient
involving the Group's affairs. Starting from September 2012, the CEO had
been entitling to monthly salary of HK$120,000 with year end double
pay. Starting from November 2012, the Chairman had been entitling to
monthly salary of HK$50,000 with year end double pay.

The INEDs are not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office
as the INEDs except for their entittement of an annual remuneration of
HK$150,000 determined by the Board subject to annual review with
reference to their duties and responsibilities as well as the prevailing

market condition.

The Company aims to attract, retain and motivate talented and recognized
staff, the Management and directors of the Group by adoption of share
option scheme. A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
on 15 February 2002 and expired on 14 February 2012. Hereafter, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme on 11 October 2012.
The Company had granted an aggregate of 168,000,000 share options
carrying the right to subscribe for the nominal ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company, representing approximately 6.92% of total of
2,428,255,008 shares issued share capital as at 18 December 2012.
No share option was exercised during the Year. Therefore, there was an
aggregate of 168,000,000 share options which had not been exercised as
at 31 December 2012.

Nomination Committee

Structure

The Nomination Committee has been established on 1 April 2012
with the role to lead the process and make recommendations for
appointments to the Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill
up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when they arise, in the light
of challenges and opportunities facing the Company, as well as business
development and requirements of the Company and to take approved

action if within delegated authority.
The current Nomination Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:
Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman)

Mr. Yau Chi Ming
Mr. Huang Liang
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

Function

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are summarised below:

®

(ii)

(iii)

()

v)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board's
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on

the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of INEDs;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman and the chief

executive; and

to consult the Remuneration Committee about its remuneration

proposals for the candidate to be appointed as a Director.

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the

Company's website.

The Nomination Committee would consult the Executive Directors about

its proposals on appointment of other Directors and seek internal and

external professional advices if considered necessary.

Conduct of Meetings

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting on 18 July

2012 to consider and approve the nomination of the Executive Directors

for the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)
Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting for the

Year is as follows:

No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of

Members attendance in total)
Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman) N/A
Mr. Yau Chi Ming N/A
Mr. Huang Liang N/A

Dr. David Chain Chi Woo (Former Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yat Fai
Mr. Leung Yun Fai

1/1 (100%)
1/1 (100%)
1/1 (100%)

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least one each year. At least
7 days' notice has be given prior to any meeting being held unless all

members of Nomination Committee unanimously waive such notice.

The Company prepares and delivers meeting papers that include all
relevant information about the meeting to the Nomination Committee
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by
the Company Secretary were circulated to the Nomination Committee
members for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting.
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of the

minutes were sent to the Nomination Committee members for records.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Executive Directors have defined clear directions on powers of
management and delegate daily management and administration
functions to the Management. The functions reserved to the Board and
those delegated to the Management are reviewed from time to time. The
Company would formalize the division of responsibility between the Board
and the Management when the operational requirement of the Group

justifies such division.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as the Independent
Auditor by Shareholders at the 2012 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 25 May 2012 (the "2012 AGM"). In order to maintain
the independence and objectivity of the Independent Auditor (which for
these purposes include any entity under common control, ownership
or management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally),
they will not be engaged for non-audit work unless it has been pre-
approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to the Company's non-audit

services policy.

Independent Auditor was engaged on an ad hoc basis to provide non-
audit services, such as to provide a confirmation letter to the Board and
a copy of this letter to the Stock Exchange to confirm, among others, that
the continuing connected transactions have not exceeded the stipulated
cap for the transactions, as part of the process for the annual review
of the transactions as required under the Listing Rules during the Year.
The fundamental policy of the Group is to ensure that the engagement
of the Independent Auditor for non-audit services will not harm their
independence or cause any bias on audit works for the presentation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. During the Year,
the fee for engaging HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited to carry out
works in connection with the annual review of the continuing connected
transactions amounted to HK$50,000 and reporting accountants’ works
on general offer and continuing connected transaction amounted to

HK$265,000, pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

At the 2012 AGM, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed
by the Shareholders as the Independent Auditor. The Audit Committee
reviewed the terms of engagement letters of Independent Auditor in
December 2012 and agreed with HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited the
audit fees for auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year at HK$300,000.

The accounts for the Year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Audit Committee has recommended to the
Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will be nominated for
appointment as Independent Auditor at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

P (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2012

Y8 3 % B

HESAMEBMAERRARAR _ZE——F0HA
ZHREAROZARRZE—ZFRIAFK
([T —FRREFAE]) LEERRE
ERB D o RARFSIB R BRAD 2 B 1 K
EEE (BT S 2k B EE T HFEE - 5
ERERZEMNER HABMABE=FEEK
E-—HBAERRAERRERRKBEEREIT®
BREMIT 8o 2 EAER) AR TeXE
EITIFRBIE FRIFERBARE ZIFEZR
BRREECEZESE R

RAFE B AZBA R ERER T RHIFFZ
ZRRT  MERE EMRRRERMERESL T
R NZIEHEIAGE T AR GER
Hi R HERERH U EBBZRIRTEZ
IR ERZRGBFEERZBORF -AEE
2 EARBUR T AR SR BRI R RIS 2
2EFSEEEBUMRERREAEELGE
M RERBENEZRE - RAFE - EEBRE
SHMEBMAERARRBERER HAFTE
BIFT# 7T 2 T1EE B A50,0008 T RAME
MR AN Z IR - LA SR & 5 A0 55 28 2 M U B I B
BHER S 2B FHAB2650008 T °

R-F-——FERRBEFAE L BHSFMEHR
EER DR ERRIBERB L ZBE - BRE
BER_T——F+-AFEMBE TREMZE
E2EF YEEGEAMERMERAREE
ERAFREAREGAMBERRZIBERERR
300,000/ 7T °

AEEZREKMBEHSHMEBHNERA A
B BREBRTZERBFRE LER-F
REREBECREFTEEH RARAANSETZ
BRBEFAE LRZZ IR S MEHKEA
PR ) 23 Y8 S A% 2R A o



AU, T W

Corporate Governance Report
EEERAREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of its financial position and prospects. Financial results are
announced as early as possible, with interim report and annual report
as well as inside information announcements and financial disclosures

published as required under the Listing Rules.

The Management provides explanation, information and progress update
to the Executive Directors and/or Board in order for it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other issues put before the

Board for approval and consideration.

Throughout the Year, the Directors had selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial accounts of the Group which
give a true and fair view and are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A statement by the HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited about their reporting responsibilities for the Year is set out in this

report.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited did not report for the Year that there
were any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are responsible for maintaining the system of internal
control of the Group and reviewing its effectiveness regularly. The internal
control system covers financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. During the Year, with the assistance of
the Audit Committee, the Directors had carried out an annual review on
internal control system and considered that the system was effective and
adequate. The Directors will continue enhancing the system in order to
cope with the changes in business environment with reference to the

recommendations of the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company is committed to safeguarding Shareholders’ and the
Company's interests as a whole and encourages Shareholders to attend
general meetings of the Shareholders for participating in the important
decisions of the Company for which Shareholders’ approval is required
under the Listing Rules and the laws of Bermuda. The Company regards
general meetings of the Shareholders as an important event as it provides
an important opportunity for direct communication between the Board
and the Shareholders. Notice of the 2012 AGM, together with the annual
report and circular, was sent to the Shareholders more than 20 clear
business days before the meeting whereas notice of the special general
meeting, together with circular, was sent to the Shareholders more than
10 clear business days before the meeting. These can allow more time for
the Shareholders to digest information in the annual report and circulars,
and to consider whether joining the meetings or not. The Directors,
including the INEDs were available to answer questions at the 2012 AGM
held in May 2012 and special general meetings held in October 2012 and
November 2012 respectively.

With the implementation of poll voting in lieu of show of hands at all
general meetings of a listed company, shareholders can fully reflect their
proprietary rights and interests by means of poll which is regarded as
a fairer method of determination on business matters than voting on a

show of hands at general meetings.

The former Deputy Chairman, when acting as the chairman of the 2012
AGM held on 25 May 2012 and current Deputy Chairman, when acting as
the chairman of the special general meetings held on 11 October 2012
and 20 November 2012 respectively, took the initiative to demand for a
poll at the commencement of the meetings and explained the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll to the Shareholders. All resolutions were
put to vote and passed by poll under the scrutiny of the independent
share registrar. The poll results were made public by means of public
announcements which were uploaded to the websites of the Company

and the Stock Exchange.

Statutory announcements, financial and other information of the Group

are made available on the Company’s website, which is regularly updated.

Shareholders may put their enquires to the Board and also put forward
proposals at general meetings by way of a written notice addressed to the

Company Secretary at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good
corporate governance and, in this regard, timely communication with the
Shareholders, including institutional investors, is crucial. The Company
considers good investor relations as a key part of its operations and
continues to promote investor relations and enhances communications

with the investors.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.g-prop.com.hk) to
make the Group's information, statutory announcements, and other
financial and non-financial information available on the internet to facilitate

its communication with Shareholders.

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and Shareholders,
and invites them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the

Investor Relations Team at ir@g-prop.com.hk.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Since 2005, the Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the CG Code to enhance corporate governance in the interests of the

Company and the Shareholders.

The Company had applied the principles and complied with the
requirements of the CG Code throughout the Year. Having carried out the
review, none of the Directors was aware of any information that would
reasonably indicate that the Company was during the Year, incompliant
with the CG Code except for several deviations (some of them are minor

deviations in form) as follows:—

Under code provisions A.2 of the CG Code, one of the important roles
of a chairman is to lead the board, ensure the management of the board
and, among other things, to ensure that all directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board's meetings and that the directors receive
adequate information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and
reliable, in a timely manner. Although the office of the Chairman had been
vacant during the period between 1 June 2007 and 3 September 2012,
the Deputy Chairman had been acting as the Chairman and fuffilled its
roles and functions properly. Subsequently, Mr. Cheung was appointed
as the Chairman with effect from 3 September 2012. Accordingly, the
Directors considered that such code provision has been complied with in

substance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (contd)

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific terms and subject to re-election.
However, the INEDs were not appointed for any specific terms.
Notwithstanding that, they are subject to retirement and re-election by
rotation at the Company's annual general meeting at least once every
three years in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws. The Directors
were of the view that the terms of the NED and INEDs was specific
enough in substance. Furthermore, subsequent to the resignations of
three former INEDs, namely Dr. Chain (with effect from 1 January 2013)
and Mr. Lam YF and Mr. Leung (with effect from 8 March 2013), all NED
and INEDs were appointed with specific terms clearly stated in their letters
of appointment with the Company. Accordingly, the Company has fully
complied with this code provision since 8 March 2013.

Under code provision C.2.2 of the CG Code, the board of the directors
of a listed company should consider the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
listed company's accounting and financial reporting function as part
of internal control of the listed company in the annual review. Under
code provision C.3.3(g) of the CG Code, the terms of reference of the
audit committee of a listed company should include the duty to discuss
the internal control system with the management to ensure that the
management had performed its duty to maintain an effective internal
control system and such discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the listed company's accounting and financial reporting
function. Although the Company did not have any staff prior to 6 August
2012, the Board secured the assistance of Chinese Estates to provide and
shared its accounting and financial reporting resources, including human
resources, accounting programmes and other information system facilities,
to ensure that the Company had fulfilled the legal and the Listing Rules'
requirements on the preparation of financial reporting and internal control.
The Board believed that such arrangement with Chinese Estates would
substantially reduce the costs of the Company in accounting, financial
reporting and internal control functions. Furthermore, the Company had
employed its own staff since 6 August 2012 and had fully complied with

this code provision ever since.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (contd)

Under code provision C.3.7 of the CG Code, the terms of reference
of the audit committee of a listed company should also require the
establishment and review of arrangements that the employees of the
listed company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters, and
the audit committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action. As the Company did not have any staff prior to 6 August
2012, the Board considered that the absence of relevant arrangements
would not cause any material effect on the functions of financial reporting,
internal control or other related matters. As the Company had employed
its own staff since 6 August 2012, the Board would proceed to formulate

the relevant required arrangements.

Under code provision D1.4 of the CG Code, the listed company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointments. Prior to 14 August 2012, owing
to the receipt of the notice of intention from the previous substantial
Shareholders to dispose of their controlling interests in the Company,
the Board had carried out the relevant works to cope with such change
of control of the Company, including the appointments of new Directors
to the Board in August 2012 and preparing letters of appointment of
Directors. Therefore, after 14 August 2012, all new Directors appointed
during the period, who are Mr. Cheung, Mr. Cheng and Mr. Lam KW,
had signed letters of appointment. Accordingly, the Company had fully

complied with this code provision since 14 August 2012.

Under code provision F1.1 of the CG Code, the company secretary
should be an employee of the listed company and should have day-to-
day knowledge of the listed company's affair. Mr. Lam KW had taken up
the position as Group's financial controller since 2003 and Company
Secretary since 2007 and he had extensive day-to-day knowledge of the
Company, notwithstanding that he was not an employee of the Company.
Apart from being the company secretary of Chinese Estates, the previous
holding company of the Company, since 1994, he also had been being
an executive director and group financial controller of the Chinese Estates
since 12 June 2012. The Board considered that his services as the
Company Secretary were indispensable. With effect from 6 August 2012,
Mr. Lam KW resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Group's
financial controller and Board appointed Miss Wong Yuet Ying as full time
employee to take up that position. Since 6 August 2012, the Company

had fully complied with this code provision.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (contd)

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, directors should participate
in continual professional training to ensure that they have comprehensive
and appropriate knowledge so as to make contribution to the Board at all
time. Apart from Dr. Chain, a former INED who had resigned as a Director
and all positions in the Board's committees with effect from 1 January
2013, all Directors had participated in continual professional training

during the Year.

Under code provision A.3 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should
be of sufficient number for their views to carry weight. Moreover, under
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of
a listed company must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. Despite compliance of such code provision by the Company
during the Year, the number of INEDs was below the minimum required
number during the period from 1 January 2013, being the effective date
of the resignation of Dr. Chain, to 20 February 2013. Starting from 20
February 2013, the Company recompiled the code provision when Mr.

Yau, Mr. Huang and Mr. Mai were appointed as INEDs.

CONCLUSION

Notwithstanding there were several deviations from the code provisions
(some of them are minor deviations in form), the Company trusts that
it has achieved high standards of corporate governance during the Year.
The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of G-Prop
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 51 to 129, which comprise
the consolidated and company statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY (contd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: PO5467

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWSERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE-ZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

Revenue KA

Costs of sales SHE KA

Gross profit EA

Other income EHAth g A
Administrative expenses THAX

Fair value changes on investment properties & W ¥ 2 A FEEH)
Share-based payment expenses J e LR 5

(Loss) profit before tax B Al (&) & F
Income tax credit (expense) Fre B (2 i)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BE) R

Other comprehensive income (loss), HihzmEkzs (BE)

net of income tax EHIBRAEH
Fair value changes on available-for-sale FEERMEEL N TEED

financial assets

Total comprehensive (loss) income AEELE (EHE) s
for the year Eb G

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to AR F#EE ABEEREE

owners of the Company (518) =7

Total comprehensive (loss) income AATEBAEMN
for the year attributable to owners of AFEZHE (&)
the Company Wz 458

(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) R (ER) &R (B4)
Basic and diluted ERR#E

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2012 2011

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B & FET FHIT

7 8,370 8,410
(116) (162)

8,254 8,248

9 799 3,981
(7,680) (2,885)

18,250 3,800

(31,248) -

(11,625) 13,144
12 40 (50)

10 (11,585) 13,094
2,946 (4,225)

(8,639) 8,869

(11,585) 13,094

(8.639) 8,869

14 (0.48) 0.54

RAUMEHREMETGRAETFERERA—BD -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

=R O B

At 31 December 2012 RZ-ZE——-F+-_A=+—H

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b= FHBT FHE T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e R E Y 15 578 -
Investment properties REWE 16 50,400 32,150
Goodwill EES 17 2,939 2,939
Interests in jointly controlled entities HE G T RS 18 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets HFESRMEE 19 38,072 34,978
91,989 70,067
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets FEeREE 19 - 41,908
Amount due from a shareholder Ji& W f% 3R IR 20 278 =
Loan to a fellow subsidiary fEFTRIZAKEBRRIER 21 - 300,000
Loan to a shareholder B FREER 22 220,000 =
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWARIE R e Kk
TE I RRIE 23 918 1,061
Short-term loans receivable FEY SR B E SRBRIE 24 - =
Time deposits and bank balances TERFR R IRITAE B 25 86,769 75,650
Tax recoverable JFE WA 5k 39 -
308,004 418,619
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to ultimate holding company R & &&= A R IE 26 - 3
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RER RN BARFIE 27 - 103
Creditors and accruals FERTBRIE R FERT5RIR 28 964 488
Deposits received and receipts in advance B4z & K IEKR A 481 438
Obligation under a finance lease MEHERHE 29 6 -
Tax liabilities HRIEEE - 11
1,451 1,043
Net current assets REBEEFE 306,553 417,576
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERRBAERS 398,542 487,643

DINGS) LIMITED

Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBRREER

At 31 December 2012 WZZE——F+=-_A=+—H

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium
Translation reserve
Securities investments reserve
Share options reserve
(Accumulated losses) retained profits
— Proposed final dividend
— Others

Total equity
Non-current liabilities

Obligation under a finance lease

Deferred tax liabilities

BAR G

Bk

BR135 B

B 5

B RA L
RBEREE
(REHER) RE T
—BORA B S

— Rt

JIR < 5 48 2R

FRBRME

RMEHSET
BEXERBERE

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FET FHIT
30 24,282 24,282
351,638 351,638
234 234

39 (2,907)
31,248 -
- 2,428
(8,995) 111,861
398,446 487536
29 26 -
31 70 107
96 107
398,542 487643

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 129 were approved ~ $51E 1298 iR 6 KRB EEFGN_F

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2013 and —=F=A =+ /\B L& RZEZEM  WH T
signed on its behalf by: EERRESEEE:

Cheung Wai Kuen RERE Cheng Hau Yan [t

Director Ex Director BE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& BAFSIREMI aE 4R & M IS MR A — 25 ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERETERBSBH K

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

(Accumulated

Securities Share losses)
Share Share  Translation investments options retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits equity
&5 REER (Z:ER) B&
B& R EE B 5 b RERfE e RERF BRAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT THL THL TAL TAL

At 1 January 2011 RZE——F-F-H 24,282 351,638 234 1,318 = 108,480 485,952
Profit for the year REE T = = = = = 13,094 13,094
Fair value changes on avallablefor ~ HESBEEL

sale financial assets ISRV - - - (4225) - - (4,225)
Total comprehensive (loss) ~EE2H(BRE)

income for the year et - - - (4225) - 13,094 8,869
Final dividend paid BERRERE - - - - - (4857) (4857)
Interim dividend paid BERHERE - - - - - (2,428) (2,428)
At 31 December 2011 and RZIE——F

1 January 2012 TZA=+-AR

—E-—£-f-F %28 351638 234 (2,907) - 114289 487536

Loss for the year rEEER - - - - = (11,585) (11,585)
Fair value changes on avallablefor ~ HESBEEZ

sale financial assets ATEEH - - - 2,946 - - 2,946
Total comprehensive income (loss) ~ AFE2E Kz

for the year (BR)as - - - 2,946 - (11,585) (8,639)
Recognition of equity-settled BREEREEN

share-based payments DGR - - - - 31,248 - 31,248
Final dividend paid BRRERS - - - - - (2,428) (2,428)
Special dividend paid BRRAIRE - - - - - (109271)  (109.271)
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z%

+ZB=1+-AH 24,282 351,638 234 39 31,248 (8,995) 398,446

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated 47 & Bf %5 R M sE TV 4R B B IS RER M — 25 »

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE-ZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of available-for-sale financial assets
Share-based payment expenses
Fair value changes on investment properties

Net exchange loss (gain)

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Increase in amount due from a shareholder

Increase (decrease) in creditors and accruals,

deposits and receipts in advance

Cash used in operating activities
Hong Kong Profit Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of available-for-sale financial assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Loan to a shareholder

Loan repayment from third parties

Loan repayment from (loan to) a fellow subsidiary

Net cash generated by (used in)
investing activities

REREEXBRERE
BBl (&1 E A
ANIIEREZAE:
GFSE N

ME BERREITE

AHFECHEERR L

L 18
R S it
BANE L AT ERD

bE 3R 1R (W aR ) JHER

EEESRHAZ
RERERE
FEURRIE - e R
BRI ()

& Wi B BR SR IR 32 AN
FENERBERE A R R
TEdRIEIE 0 O )

AREEXRBZRE
ENEEMNESH

RAREEXB 2R EFHE

REREXBZRERE
BOSFEemEE
BEDE #EkRE

2 WA R

& T BRRER
F=ZHEEERK

R RM B AR EEEN
(BTFRAMBARER)

®E(AR)REXKZ
REFH

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T T
(11,625) 13,144
(7,014) (7,225)
42 -

(100) -
31,248 -
(18,250) (3,800)
223 (2,658)
(5,476) (539)
28 (356)

(53) =
518 (721)
(4,983) (1,616)
(a7) (47)
(5,030) (1,663)
42,747 88,583
(587) -

5,795 4,631
(220,000) -
220,000 -
80,000 (100,000)
127,955 (6,786)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Cash flows from financing activities REMEXBZRERE
Dividends paid B A (111,699) (7,285)
Repayment of obligation under a finance lease BERMEHEEE 1) -
Net advances from ultimate holding company RRER A R BT (3) 3
Net repayment to fellow subsidiaries B R E R RIEFFRE (103) (127)
Net cash used in financing activities ARmMEEBE 2 RELFE (111,806) (7,409)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERRESESEEBEBIZM
cash equivalents OR2) 38 11,119 (15,858)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHAZEER
beginning of year RE&ZEEER 75,650 91,242
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgmoog - 266
Cash and cash equivalents FRZAER
at the end of year RE&ZEER 86,769 75,650
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRASEEER
cash equivalents HEER D AT
Time deposits and bank balances E R RIRITA 86,769 75,650
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE-ZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the Company's
registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are disclosed in the

“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the principal
activities of its jointly controlled entities and principal subsidiaries are set

out in notes 18 and 37 respectively.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The accounting policies adopted in the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012 are consistent with those followed

in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011 except as described below.

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the

following new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations

(“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group's financial year

beginning on 1 January 2012. The new HKFRSs adopted by the Group in

the consolidated financial statements are set out below:

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Disclosures — Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-
time Adopters

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial

Assets

The Group had early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred
Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”, in respect of the recognition of
deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair value under HKAS 40
“Investment Property” during the financial year end 31 December 2010
and this change in accounting policy has been consistently applied in the

consolidated financial statements.

1.

¥ &

ARRR—HRBREEMEL 2 ZBEERA
A MERNREEHARZAERAF ([
Frl) b ARBIEMMERERERTBZERR
FRIMUNAFR[ARER ]| —EHHE-

iR A BRERABIT (ET]) 25 BT
REARBEEMBAR([AER])ZWEE
B BREARAN MEEEANEAASRE
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ARRZ EBEBRIREER  MEXREGE
BRITEMBARZEEXRE D RIENHEI8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

I MRIERI BB

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. Véf\% il
SRS
l:I =

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

Save as described above, the application of the new HKFRSs had no

material effect on how the results and financial position for the current or

prior accounting years have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no

prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle?

Government Loans?

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures*

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Investment Entities®

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

NGS) LIMITED

Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=ZZE——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. Jféﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ-ﬁﬂ%ﬁ BRI
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING iy 5 AEH J ( [ BB RS
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd) A8 ¢

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ? BURREERNFESE2H T A/

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the RZZTZHEEMH 2 BB KR EEBIFIIR )

classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was )\imﬂﬁ%ﬂ BEABZHRATE - R-_E—TF
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the classification and {EF] 2 BB RS LR FIORMASREES

measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition. HRGEARBUEBER ZRTE °
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below: BB HELEFOR L EERTWT

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS - HEBEBGTEAFEINN [/ LA #F

39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be Rit2 | GEAZIBEERREMEER
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, RIRBEHK AN FEAHE - LEZR/IK
debt investments that are held within a business model whose BaRRenBmMARERAFFE 2 EB
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have KE UREFEERTERREELRS
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and MERMRzENBReREZEBERE  —
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at MR LB EARREHEKAAE T A
amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. Al HiEBRERRAERREREN TR
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at EETHARZ A FERE o Uhoh - IRIBE B
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In ﬁ%iﬁi‘;’im%%ﬁ CERAMEL A E
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election BE UREMezEAREERBAESE
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity B (WFHEEEE) ATFEZHEZS)
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive REBREBBAZERERER

income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.

. With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated -+ BB HRELNFIRRTE st 248

as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the ERABABRUARMATEZEMAEM
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is S HABRERREHRGOZS/REE
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented ATFEEHSENEMEZEREZ] K
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the EEMEEmREEREEZEERRE
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive TESELSERER F 2B RE -
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit cRBEFERREMZEREEATE
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to EHHRISENHAEER - BE  RE
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently BB ERE395 45 ﬁﬁi@%*
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire REAFEzcREBEATEZEH 2
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability BNEEZT

designated as fair value through profit or loss was presented in

profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January &EHEHRELERFHRA T —HF—A—H
2015, with earlier application permitted. K2 ERIBz FEBBER WA REER -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont'd)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
in the future may have a significant impact on the amounts reported in
respect of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding
the Group's financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable

estimate of the effect until a detailed review has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements. HK
(SIO)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one
basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a
new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance has been

added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified. HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities
— Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting or

proportionate consolidation.

LIMITED  Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (cont'd)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements

in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of
these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided all of these

standards are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
five standards may have a significant impact on amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements. The application of HKFRS 10 may
result in the Group no longer consolidating some of its investees, and
consolidating investees that were not previously consolidated. A detailed
review will be performed by the directors of the Company to determine

and quantify the impact on the application of HKFRS 10.

The application of HKFRS 11 will change the classification and subsequent
accounting of the Group's jointly controlled entities which have been
accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method. Under
HKFRS 11, those jointly controlled entities will be accounted for using the
equity method, resulting in the aggregation of the Group's proportionate
share of jointly controlled entities’ respective net assets and items of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income into a single line item which will
be presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as “investment in joint
ventures” and “share of profits (loss) of joint ventures” respectively. The
summarised financial information in respect of jointly controlled entities

are disclosed in note 18.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope
of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level
fair value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only under
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS

13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
new Standard may affect certain amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and the related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally

enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose information
about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral posting
requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable master

netting agreement or similar arrangement.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities and the related disclosures (cont'd)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within those annual
periods. The disclosures should be provided retrospectively for all
comparative periods. However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not
effective until annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with

retrospective application required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures
being made with regard to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

in the future.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit
plans and termination benefits. The most significant change relates
to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan
assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined
benefit obligations and in fair value of plan assets when they occur, and
hence eliminate the “corridor approach” permitted under the previous
version of HKAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs.
The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised
immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net
pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan assets used
in the previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a “net-interest”
amount, which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net

defined benefit liability or asset.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2013 and require retrospective application.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under
the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement of comprehensive income
is renamed as a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and an income statement is renamed as a statement of profit or
loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into
two categories in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions
are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis. The amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied in

the future accounting periods.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Amendments to HKFRSs include:

. amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equijpment; and

. amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012 (cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 16

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by equipment
and servicing equipment should be classified as property, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 16 will have a

significant effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on distributions
to holders of an equity instrument and transaction costs of an equity
transaction should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes. The directors of the Company anticipate that the amendments
to HKAS 32 will have no effect on the Group's consolidated financial

statements as the Group has already adopted this treatment.

HK (IFRIC) -
Surface Mine
HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a

Mine applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining
activity during the production phase of the mine (production stripping
costs). Under the Interpretation, the costs from this waste removal
activity (stripping) which provide improved access to ore is recognised
as a non-current asset (stripping activity asset) when certain criteria are
met, whereas the costs of normal on-going operational stripping activities
are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 2 /nventories. The stripping
activity asset is accounted for as an addition to, or as an enhancement of,
an existing asset and classified as tangible or intangible according to the

nature of the existing asset of which it forms part.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013. Specific transitional provisions are provided to entities that
apply HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 for the first time. However, HK (IFRIC) — Int
20 must be applied to production stripping costs incurred on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented. The directors of the Company
anticipate that HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 will have no effect to the Group's
financial statements as the Group does not engage in such activities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and financial
instruments that are measured at their fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair

value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results

in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those

used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

3. TEEHRBE

REVBEBRRERBEEGAMAGEMZE
BYBHREER (BEAEERZBEAMBRE
ER - FEEAER ([BEBGFHER]) KEFE)
REARAUETRAMAE I 56 F B
RNBEBEHEXIMBERRBESF LHR
A ([ EWARAN) REFERBRD 2 WEREM
REZBRKEERR-

GANBREDEELRAERY  HRATE
SEZRAMERERIARS A2 R
FMLIT B e A —REAERBREZA
FEEE-

TERBEHIIMT

(a) FEARBEE
HEMBHRREBEARRRARFESE
B(EMBAR) 2HB®E - EH A
AR EREE-—REBZMBEREER
R AR E R P AR &S -

FAMBEHRLEZHE LR KSR
X HERKBERHEEEERLERN
I (ER) R 2EBEBERPIIR-
MEBARz2HKRRAREEBENAREE
BARI R ER A ESEBORRBE

WMEFE SHIME R R M HmERIEL
HE UFEHEHHRRANRERLMKE
NEZEFTRE e

SEARARBEAERS
ERGERE REH-

REER - WA KRR

NGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2012




AU W

.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

at the acquisition date; and

. assets that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.
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3.

(b)

Ftr-RA=t+—BItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Business combinations (cont'd)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in

profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such

treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,

would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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3.

(@

(d

F+ZA=T—HIFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of

the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill

is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or

loss on disposal.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which ventures have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled

entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in
jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity
of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled
entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZE=Z—=

3.

(d)

(e)

FHA=t+—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Interests in jointly controlled entities (cont'd)

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the
extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is

recognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable

and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,

and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

(e)

®

(8)

F+ZA=T—HIFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (cont'd)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Investments properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognised.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

(8)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of such category of financial

assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at fair

value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including amount due from a shareholder,
loan to a shareholder, loan to a fellow subsidiary, debtors and
deposits, short-term loans receivable and time deposits and
bank balances) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BREMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZE=Z—=

3.

(8)

FHoA=t—ALFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for sale or are not classified as any of the

other categories under HKAS 39.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using the

effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.

Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of securities investments
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the

securities investments reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment

losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRERME
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3.

(8)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

For available-for-sale financial assets equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security

below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest

rate.
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(8)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying

amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of securities investments reserve.
In respect of available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event

occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Fr-RA=t+—BItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company's own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including amount due to ultimate
holding company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, creditors
and accruals, deposits and obligation under a finance lease) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or

loss.
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(8)

FHoA=t—ALFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit or loss in the
reporting period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure

is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of

lease terms and 5 years

Office equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer software 30%
Equipment under finance lease 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However,
when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over

the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued used of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BREMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZE=Z—=

3.

)

FHZA=T—HIFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition
Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties
under operating leases, is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-

line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

0)

Bi 5 3R 3R MY =
For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZE=Z—=

FHA=t+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Taxation (cont'd)

Deferred tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z2=F——F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

(k)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as expenses on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated

statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in

which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits form the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic

benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZE=Z—=
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Fr-RA=t+—BItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign

currency borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to

hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

. exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from

equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BREMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z—=

3.

(m)

(0)

FHZA=T—HIFE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Share-based payment arrangements

Share-based payment transactions of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of share options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit

or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained

profits.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect

of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable

can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=ZZ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEZEe:tBREHE @)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(p) Related parties (p) BEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group that BAE AN LT IR T R B ¥k 2 A
is preparing its financial statements as follows: SEE#Ez ATHER
(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related () fMEBATAL: BIZZATSEZAT
to the Group if that person: HERZIHRERKE EAREEERH
38
(1) has control or joint control over the Group; (1) FEHIsERZESAREE :
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or Q) HAKEAEERTEN K
(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the G) RAEEXAEEERARNE
Group or a parent of the Group. EERAR -
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following () fWfFE TR GG - BB B EAR
conditions applies: BB ME
(1) the entity and the Group are members of the same (1) ZERBEASEER-—SEHZ
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and 2= NI E= S S /NI I )= /N
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). PACES =N KA ARl
) o
(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 2 —ERARSEBNBEAT
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of HEERA (HE—EERK
a group of which the other entity is a member). BARIZEEETKERRZ
BENRIHAERR) -
(3) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 3) MEAEBHRRA-—ZF=FM4&
EVNCIE
(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the 4) —-EBERAR—FE=-FEBZz&AE
other entity is an associate of the third party. RE ME—ERAEZE=A
EE B ENE
(5) the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the (5) ZERABREERIZBREE
benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or RIEEER ZESRBEREN
an entity related to the reporting entity. If the Group is P&l AN S E AR 5B R ZaT
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also gl ARMER 2 B TREAR
related to the Group. SEBERE-
(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (6) ZERES()EATH A THEHIsK
identified in (). F R
(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence @) ROMBEAMALTHERS
over the entity or is a member of the key management BEARYENSBZER (3%
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ERIBRAZEEERA

o
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e BRRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in
measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on

disposal of its investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY  (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

Investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at the end of each reporting period based on its market value and by
adopting investment method, and/or direct comparison method, as
appropriate. The valuation was relied on the discounted cash flow analysis
and the capitalisation of income approach. The investment method is
based upon estimates of future results and a set of assumptions specific
to each property to reflect its tenancy and cashflow profile. The fair value
of each investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current term leases, term vyield rate, assumptions about rental
income from future reversion leases in light of current market conditions,
the assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by the
valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors, including
term yield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such yield rates were adopted
after considering the investment sentiments and market expectations of
properties of similar nature. Direct comparison method assumes each
of these properties is capable of being sold in its existing state with the
benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant markets. Should there are
changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions, the fair value

of the investment properties will change in future.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires management to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and

a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2012 was
approximately HK$2,939,000 (31 December 2011: approximately
HK$2,939,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated
at the time the assets are acquired based on historical experience,
the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on whether

the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

5.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. @@ T HE
Categories of financial instruments (a) ST EEH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets HESRERE 38,072 76,886
Loans and receivables (including time deposits & 3k & U R IB (B 45 € 5
and bank balances) ERRIRITLESR) 307,331 376,270
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost DN 1,374 968
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £HEBREEBEZERBEEK

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
financial assets, amount due from a shareholder, loan to a fellow
subsidiary, loan to a shareholder, debtors, deposits, short-term loans
receivable, time deposits and bank balances, amount due to ultimate
holding company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, creditors and
accruals, deposits received and obligation under a finance lease.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure in respect
of financial instruments or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risks.

FEFBIECRIABGRESESME
E REERFBE ETREAMNBEARE
K BETREER BRKE 22 BK
RMEFERR ERFERLRITES KA
REERARRE RARZMERFR
B ENRERESTR  ERRERRE
HESE -ZFeRIEFBREWMER
B-Tx#yEznFemTARRCRR
MIMAREZEFRR 2 BR - EEEEE
N E %S AR ARELR K B 1B R R
HUEE 2 e

AEEAHeMIAZRRSERERTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Market risk

®

(ii)

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the Group's monetary assets and monetary
liabilities by value and the rental income are denominated
in HK$, except the available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in the United States dollars (“USD"). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign current assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Assets BE

usb ETT

Sensitivity analysis
As HK$ are pegged to USD, it is assumed that there would
be no material currency risk exposure between these two

currencies and therefore is excluded from the analysis.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group does not have any bank borrowings.

The Group has interest-bearing assets including time deposits
and bank balances, available-for-sale financial assets, loan to
a fellow subsidiary and loan to a shareholder. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates
("HIBOR") and The London Interbank Offered Rates
(“LIBOR").

LRl T A )

THEAREEEEREE (B)
T

®

(ii)

SR

AEBRBLEKEEREKEE
BEARESRABAETRER
B FESREERIMUET ([
To)) RE MBI o AR BRI BT
IIMNEREVEE R B B2 IMNEEHT K
R-AKRERTYEEHINERR -
YR HEEEBENERIINERR -

AEBENINEFHEZEKEERTR

LEHRZEEEENT
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
38,214 77,166
BRRE DT

BB TR HRRMEE
HBRYESAEERR T8
5534

HE nENFE R
REE W EAEMBPITREE -

REEERZTEREERBERER
REfTHESR FESREE BTR
EMBARERRME TRRER &
FeMTAZHBRESMERE - A
5% B3R Iy 3 S 3R AR AR AT A1) R 8 P K
ReAm BEREEGEENTRR

YRFRRHZBEIPERNN KRR

AEBEZHRERENXRBREEES
REBRITRAERE ([FERTH
ERED) RpFRTEERE ([H
FERITEERE ) 2 KF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Market risk (cont'd)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2011: 50
basis points) increase or decrease in HIBOR or LIBOR is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates has been 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's:

. Post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,500,000 (2011: post-tax profit decrease/increase
by approximately HK$1,848,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on
its time deposits, loan to a shareholder and loan to a

fellow subsidiary.

. Other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2012 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$190,000 (2011: other
comprehensive loss would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$384,000) mainly as a result of the
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets.

(iii)  Price risk

The Group's investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets which are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period and expose the Group to price risk.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

5.

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Market risk (cont'd)
(iii)  Price risk (cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to price risk at the end of the reporting
period. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is
5% in the current year.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower (2011: 5% higher/
lower):

> loss before tax for the year ended 31 December 2012
would not increase/decrease (2011: Nil); and

. other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,904,000 (2011: approximately
HK$3,844,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets.

Credit risk management

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2012 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets. With respect to
credit risk arising from loan to a fellow subsidiary and loan to a
shareholder, the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from default
of the counterparty is limited as the counterparty has good history
of repayment. The Group's time deposits are deposited with banks
of high credit quality in Hong Kong.

The Group made transactions with counterparties with acceptable
credit quality in conformance to the Group treasury policies
to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable credit ratings from
reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny of financials for non-
rated counterparties are two important criteria in the selection of
counterparties. The credit quality of counterparties will be closely
monitored over the life of the transactions. The Group reviews its
financial counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit strength of
each counterparty and ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the Group
also monitors potential exposures to each financial institution
counterparty.

Other than concentration of credit risk on the loan to a fellow
subsidiary and loan to a shareholder, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. @@ T Ew
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd) (b) £HEABEEBEZERBEE (&)
Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements FEERZEFmRAMEEIEZEE
Except for the loan to a fellow subsidiary and loan to a shareholder BT 21 R22FIBREETRAMBEARE
as disclosed in notes 21 and 22 which were guarantee, the Group HERETHREERBEERIN NEEW
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover ER A EER G E M EEIE R A
its credit risks associated with its financial assets. REECHEELBREERR -
Liquidity risk management REELEEEE
The Group manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring current AEBEERDECRAR T ERTHE
and expected liquidity requirements and ensuring sufficient liquid ERKEBEAZABHESTE  UERRA
cash and intended credit lines of funding from major financial HRARBDRe KNGAEIREEEZESH
institutions to meet the Group's liquidity requirements in the short g RE WENASE &R
and long term. The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by nNBECHRE - EEESREEERDE
management. Management will raise or refinance bank borrowings SRR RN ERERRITEEIHE
whenever necessary. fTHRE -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have RBERR AEBWEEAZRBES
significant exposure to liquidity risk. EN
The contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of RBERR BREXKH —FAR—F
the Group's financial liabilities which are required to be repaid IFRNEECZASECRABBI AR
on demand or within one year and between 1 and 5 years 1,378,000/8 7t (=& — —4F : £J968,000
amounted to approximately HK$1,378,000 (2011: approximately BT ) & #929,0008 T (= F — —F ¢
HK$968,000) and approximately HK$29,000 (2011: Nil) ;) o
respectively.
The following tables detail the Group's contractual maturity for its TREVNAEEENTECRBEZE LT
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up HEFB SRIBEBEAEEZEAHE
based on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities KEEZBH RepmBEsARRER S
based on the earliest dates on which the group can be required to MEMAH ZEXBEANERETeZHE
pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. mE e
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual Total
effective  orlessthan  Between 1 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year and5 years 5years  cash flows amount
mEFH RERE EHEES 3]
EBRAE  SoR-F rit:3 BRLE RENREAE REARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE  TER TR TR TRR  TER
At 31 December 2012 R=Z--#+-A=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRER
Creditors and accruals FEf R IE R e 508 - 964 - - 964 964
Deposits received Blize - 404 - - 404 404
Obligation under a finance lease MERERE 5.520% 10 29 - 39 n
1378 29 - 1,407 1,400




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. R T H @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd) (b) LREAREEBZERBEE (B)
Liquidity risk management (cont'd) HBELEREE (&)
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual Total
effective  orlessthan  Between 1 Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year  and 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
METH BRERE ERTAAREER

REME  RON-F —ERfF HEnF RenERE  RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
THR TATL THEL THEL TR TER

At 31 December 2011 R-B-——-F+=-A=t+-H

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER

Amount due to ultimate holding company R & &4 iR A 7] 5008 - 3 - - 3 3

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RERZMBARFE = 103 = - 103 103

Creditors and accruals FERRIE R TS - 488 - - 488 488

Deposits received BiEe - 374 - - 374 374
968 - - 968 968

(c) Fair value of financial instruments () £MIAZATHE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are cRMEEREBRAGEZLAFEIZNATE

determined as follows. REETE :

. The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with . Eﬁﬁﬁ{%ﬁ 1615 30 1A & BT &

standard terms and conditions and traded in active markets LEEZeMEERSREBEZ

are determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask ’Ai@)}n P2EmMBEARE R

prices respectively.

The fair values of derivative instruments are calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives. Foreign currency forward contracts are
measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield
curves derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities
of the contracts. Interest rate swaps are measured at the
present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted
based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted

interest rates.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding those described above) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

5.

(@

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Fair value of financial instruments (cont'd)

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate to their fair values:

Financial liabilities SREE

Obligation under a finance lease ~ EtEMAES T

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that
are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset

or liability that are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs).

5 ©mTIT A @

() ERMIAZATEGE
BTRAFLEIN RRAREEBRES
MHEBRTEERTREERERAEL
FREESEEAFERSE:

2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

REE AFHE BREE NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FET

32 38 = =

RESHBRRRXBRZ L FHELE

TRERBRERRRATEFEZER
TREZAN UREBEAFEZATHEEERE
DRE—E=:

b
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2

AFEHESEAS 2 AER
BERERTHIEZBE
(REBE) :

K AFEAEREE (RER)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 5. @@ T Emw

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (cont'd) () =RMIAEZATHE (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated RGEHBMEHRZERZ A FETE
statement of financial position (cont'd) (%)

TRETRANEBARTED RS PTE DR
ANVFELEZEBMTAEDN:

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments

recorded at fair value by the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R EZR E=R i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHT FHET T T
At 31 December 2012 R=-Z——-F+=-H=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets  FE&E &R EE 38,072 - - 38,072
At 31 December 2011 RZEBE—F+_A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets  FE& & BAE 76,886 = = 76,886
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in RZMEFEAN F—F - F_RBERFE=H
both years. 2 [l fe 3 o

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of each reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s

length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets

REBRTSEEZEMTAZAFEDNS
BEHRABZTIE - W BN R ER BB
RS- -5 & FRER - HRER
BREERBESRE BZSERER
BREMBAFELELETZMERS ]
MIZARREE AREMTEREER
Rz RER/BANZEAE-WETA

held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are BEtAE &

included in Level 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the Company
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at

a reasonable cost.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly review and manage
the Group's capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound capital position,
and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from 2011.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. At 31 December 2012 and
2011, the Group's gearing ratio was undefined because the Group did not

have any borrowings at the end of each reporting period.

6. EXARKRER

AEEFEBRBREBRKFS T EMRRRBEARE
EE MEREAERARGHEZTAEREER

X FTRARRRFAKEZERBSERLE 2/
N NERAEEER/ARRRBRFERMKD
B Y REMESAEERENE-

AATEEEEL TR R R ERAREZ AR

R F BT B B AR R B T A
BRI R B ARB LB ARR
FHBAZEH AEEEBRBR T —— 4
RET o

AEBEREAABLRERHEENGER LA
HTEEMEEEM B -R_T——_FK_-F
——Ft-A=1+—8 ARFAKERZHEH

R BEFEE HEBREEABEL K-

7. REVENUE 7. WA

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts WAEBE WK EY 2 &5t

received and receivable, analysed as follows: DHTAT :

Property rental income MM e WA 1,852 1,764
Interest income from investment and finance &R EF 2 BA 6,518 6,646
8,370 8,410
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GEMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to make

strategic decisions.

The Group has engaged two reportable segments — (i) investment and
finance; and (i) properties investment. The segmentations are based on
the information about the operations of the Group that management uses

to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:
Investment and finance - Investing and financing activities
Properties investment = Property leasing

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported segment

profit or loss remain unchanged from 2011.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that operate
different activities. They are managed separately because each business

has different markets and requires different marketing strategies.

Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from investment and finance of approximately
HK$6,518,000 (2011: approximately HK$6,646,000) is revenue of
approximately HK$5,283,000 (201 1: approximately HK$5,070,000) which
arose from the Group’s two (2011: three) major customers and each

customer accounted for more than 10% of the Group's total revenue.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group during the year is as follows:

Investment and finance KER@ME
Customer A BFEA
Customer B XFB
Customer C BFC

DINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2012

okt
~

U=
8. =ZiExD

AEERBETREERREAMNMELREORTE
REHZBREEELENED -

A LB ERET 28BS B ORERBE R
(NVHERE - %5 BEENEREA A LR
BRRZ AN -

TEXBEHWT
BRENBE - RELBERS
MERE - MEEE

ARERNETE 2B BIARZHEFRAS
T —FREHTE-

AEEF2HDBALETRIES BRI ERE
T REXERER VAR SEBKEES TR
M5 B ERAR TSR

FEEFZEH
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REMBHRERWE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Operating segment information is presented below:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Revenue
Revenue from external customers

Results
Segment results for reportable segments

Bank interest income

Unallocated items
Unallocated corporate expenses, net
Income tax credit

Core profit (excluding major non-cash items)
Major non-cash items
fair value changes on investment properties
share-based payment expenses

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

BA
REsBRR ZHA

| M

&
HES

Bz o WBRE

BRITHBHA
ADEIRE
Fox PANGIEdulzx
FrisREn

BOKH (FEETEREER)

TEHRLAR
BANE 2 AFEED
REER

FRRAERAREAFERSR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2012

Assets
Segment assets for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

&E
EANWLNEEE

ADEZ NAIEE

N==!

o
S

e e )

LEDBARZIIMT

RAEZEHREER

BE—F——Ff+-_A=+—HIFE

Investment Properties
and finance investment Consolidated
RERRME NERE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET
6,518 1,852 8,370
2,845 197 3,642
496 - 496
(2,765)
40
1,413
18,250
(31,248)
(11,585)

REMBRRER

RZF——F+=-A=+—H

Investment Properties
and finance investment
RERME MERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
343,468 54,304
908 550

Consolidated
R
HK$'000
TAR

397,172

2,221

399,993

1,458

89

1,547
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W ST N ST
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EEnIE
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEDHER RS REK
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE—T——F 1+ A=1—HIFEF
Investment Properties
and finance investment Consolidated
BRERBE MERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THT
Revenue WA
Revenue from external customers RENBEE ZHA 6,646 1764 8410
Results S
Segment results for reportable segments RSB BDEE 9,304 1,619 10,923
Bank interest income HATFIBHA 579 - 579
Unallocated items ANHBIEE
Unallocated corporate expenses, net Vax PANCETu)E (2,158)
Income tax expense FER (50)
Core profit (excluding major non-cash item) #UEF (FTREXTEFRLER) 9,294
Major non-cash item FTEFRSER
fair value changes on investment properties RENFE 2 ATEED 3,800
Profit for the year attributable to owners &2 FHEE A EBERFE R
of the Company 13,094
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FREMBEMRRBER
At 31 December 2011 RZF——F+=-F=+—H
Investment Properties
and finance investment Consolidated
BRARBE MERE 24
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THEL THL
Assets BE
Segment assets for reportable segments AERS B BEE 448279 37468 485,747
Unallocated corporate assets RPEZAREE 2,939
Consolidated total assets LABERE 488,686
Liabilities =1
Segment liabilities for reportable segments 2B Mz HMaE 536 496 1,032
Unallocated corporate liabilities VaE: NIV 118

Consolidated total liabilities LABELEE 1,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from

external customers.

Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of corporate expenses, bank interest income, income tax credit/
expense, and major non-cash items including fair value changes on

investment properties and share-based payment expenses.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

All assets related to investment and finance and properties investment are

allocated to reportable segments other than unallocated corporate assets.

All liabilities related to investment and finance and properties investment
are allocated to reportable segments other than unallocated corporate

liabilities.

Geographical information
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, all the Group's
operations are located in Hong Kong. The Group's revenue is all derived

from Hong Kong for both years.

Other segment information

Investment and finance

RERME NERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TiEn
2012 2011 2012
Capital expenditure ERRR - = -
Depreciation bl - = -
Reversals of impairment loss  #EAFESHEE
recognised in respect of RLABEER
available-for-sale financial
assets 100 = -

Properties investment

/I’

8. ZiEHEP )

EXEHZ D BBAERBIFES ZWA -

DEPEEIEE 2 BRI Z A A - IR D EE B
XORITAMBIRA - -FEHREM XHREEFE
R2BE (BRREMEZATEEZPRBEE
i) e

REEHERR LA RS BERMS

BADBERAEI  BHRERBAARYE
WA FEAEARERBTLHA -
BRDEREBEN BIRERBAARIE
RAZFEREABESBTZHRA B

h & &
HE-_Z——FK-_ZT——F+-A=1+—H1It
FE AEBEESLEMEEB -EMEFE
REBZRAEHREES -
Hihp &R
Unallocated Consolidated
LR &a
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
- 620 - 620 -
= n - Y] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Efthlt A
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Bank interest income ATHAEHA 496 579
Exchange gain, net P& 5 U %5 0 F R - 2,658
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of BOFEeREERR
available-for-sale financial assets AR 100 -
Others Hith 203 744
799 3,981
10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. REE (EE) RN
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived AEE (BEE)HENE
at after (charging) crediting: (HIRR)EEA
Total staff costs including Directors’ remuneration: EERAER (B
EEHM)
Salaries and other benefits e REMER (3,321) (470)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRTE A ET SR (76) (989)
Share-based payment expenses % e B S i (17,856) (52)
(21,253) (1,511)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2R B (300) (300)
Exchange loss, net ME 518 7 5E (223) -
Depreciation of property, plant M BB RRETE
and equipment (42) -
Share-based payment expenses B AR R 2
in respect of consultancy services P& EE R S (13,392) -
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented premises ~ FAAYEZKEHER ¢
(excluding rented premise for the director of ER(TPEERRT
the Company) EE2HEAME) (205) -
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEZHS WAL 1,852 1,764
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment W AREFEEEHESWRAZ
properties that generated rental income REMEEERLE
during the year 53 (109) (146)
Direct operating expenses from investment REFIWEELHES
properties that did not generate rental income WA ZIRE D
during the year HEELERY (7) (16)
1,736 1,602

OLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRERWE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

1. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' . EENEEME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EMe
Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the BHE-_ZT-——_FRER_Z——F+=A
Company for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 were =t+—HLEFE BENXEMTFEAAF
as follows: EEvHEeREMMESNT :
For the year ended 31 December 2012: BE-_Z——-F+t-A=+-HLEFE:
Contributions
to retirement  Share-based
Salaries and benefit payment
Fees  allowances scheme expenses Total
Fek - HRERK R
wne E2E ] HEfXH ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER FAET FET FHET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (note i) (kA (i) 57 520 5 4,464 5,046
Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (note if) SRIEHEE & (FHieEii) 57 143 1 - 201
Mr. Kong Chi Ming (note iif) YL ABA 5 4 (Pt et ) - - - 7
Mr. Leung Wing Pong (note iv) PEREAE (Fativ) - - - 7
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (note v) W ET T (FiEEy) 57 - - - 57
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Dr. David Chain Chi Woo BHAE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Lam Yat Fai WEELE 190 - - - 190
Mr. Leung Yun Fai 2B 190 - - - 190
Total o 715 663 6 4,464 5,848




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' N.Z25kEEME @
EMOLUMENTS (cont'd)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont'd) (@) E=M< (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011: HE_Z——F+_-_A=t+—HILFE:
Contributions
to retirement  Share-based
Salaries and benefit payment
Fees allowances scheme expenses Total
Hek HRERRK g
ik 2R B2 HE s ) ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TEL TAT TEL

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Kong Chi Ming THEREE 10 - - - 10
Mr. Leung Wing Pong DKL 10 - - - 10

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Dr. David Chain Chi Woo EENEE 150 - - - 150

Mr. Lam Yat Fai HEEEE 150 - - - 150

Mr. Leung Yun Fai REELE 150 - - - 150

Totel B 470 - - - 470

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan is also the chief executive officer of the B AT RARA ZTHRAR EX

Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for Fi RSB e e 2 B & B 18 1 ATT B4R

services rendered by him as the chief executive officer. 2 H DRERS 2T -

None of the directors of the Company and chief executive officer RARABEZERARAITRAZRERNER

of the Company waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 T —FRZF——F+=ZA=+—H

December 2012 and 2011. IEFEANEREE AN E

Notes: BT

) Mr. Cheng Hau Yan was appointed as executive director on 14 ) BECEER_T——F\ATHEHE
August 2012 and as deputy chairman and chief executive officer BZERNTEE WN_T—ZFN
on 3 September 2012. R=BEZERBIEFERITHAEE

i) Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen was appointed as executive director on 14 i) RERBEENR-Z-—-FNAATMEHE
August 2012 and as chairman on 3 September 2012. BEERATEZUIR - ——FN

A=REZEREE-

i)  Mr. Kong Chi Ming resigned as executive director and deputy iy ITHEAEER-ZZT—_FNA=H#
chairman on 3 September 2012. ERTESFRBEIER -

iv)  Mr. Leung Wing Pong resigned as executive director and chief v) RERBEENR-Z-—-—FNA=HE
executive officer on 3 September 2012. ERTES RITHAR -

v) M Lam Kwong Wai was appointed as non-executive director on v) MAREERZZ—-FNA+HMAE
14 August 2012. BEZERIERTES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z2=F——F+_A=+—HItFE

11.

()

(b)

DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 11.

EMOLUMENTS (cont'd)

Directors’ emoluments (cont'd) (a)
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

Employees’ emoluments (b)
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2011: all) were Directors whose emoluments were included
in note (a) above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2011:

Nil) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other allowances e M EAEEL
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme MR ERIKEFGTE
Share-based payment expenses IS A Bl S

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$4,000,000 = %4,000,0007% 7T
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 L E
4,500,000/ 7T
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 L&
5,000,00078 7T
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ L&

5,500,000 7T

EENMEEME @®m

EEWHE (B
REBEE_ZT-——FRZFT-——F+ZA
=tT—BIEFEAN AEBB&ELRS M
A ER B 307 D0 72N &= B BRE B 1 7 e ek
BmRAARES HEMME -

EEMS
AEEREGSTHEE  —R(ZF——
F:2E)AER EMSEREIIN EX
@BE-HTHEZ(ZT——F:&)EEZ
B 2A T

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

819 =
13 =
13,392 =

14,224 -

BREZHMEEATEER:

Number of employees
EEHE
2012 2011




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRERME

Y N iy 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE)

Income tax credit (expense) comprises:

Current tax:

charge for the year

over-provision in the previous year
Deferred tax:

charge for the year

over-provision in the previous year

12. FTEFHEH ()

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Pl (2 L) B :
EHRIA
REFZH 9) (49)
F—FEMEGE 12 -
PFEIEFLTE
REET (53) Q)
F—FENSHE 90 =
40 (50)

BAENEBRIVREAF E 2 fh5T RS AR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

The income tax credit (expense) for the year can be reconciled to the

(loss) profit before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

E165% (—ZF——4F:165%)F &

AERZAAEHER () RS 2 H KRS R
TZBRBAT (BB EFIH RN T :

income as follows:

(Loss) profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

Over-provision in prior year

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Income tax (credit) expense

HOLDINGS) LIMITED

2012 2011
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FExT FHT
BRBAT (&18) %7 (11,625) 13,144
BEBHEHTE16.5%
(ZZ——F:165%)
StEZRIE (1,918) 16.5 2,169 16.5
BB = HARD
WA Z B 55 2 (6,762) 58.2 (12) (0.1)
SRS S AT R 2
2R 8,825 (75.9) (1,466) (11.1)
BEFENEM (102) 0.8 = =
RERBZ HISEEZ
Y7 793 (6.9) 382 29
ERLAIRERZ
B EE (876) 15 (1,023) (7.8)
Frfg®t (3E40) i (40) 0.2 50 0.4

Annual Report 2012




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z2=F——F+_A=+—HItFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. Ig B
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FABT
(@) Final dividend for 2011 paid on @ RZE—Z—FAT=HEBEIEH
13 June 2012 of HKO.1 cent Z_E——FREAKREEFRK
(2010: HKO.2 cents) per share 0.1l (ZF—F4F : 0.2781l) 2,428 4,857
(b) Interim dividend for 2011 paidon (b)) R=-ZT——F LA =+ /\BEKHT
28 September 2011 of HKO.1 cent Z_E——FHEREER
(2010: Nil) per share 0.1l (ZFE—FF : #) - 2,428
(©) Special dividend for 2012 paidon  (¢) KRZ=Z——FN\A+MHB K
14 August 2012 of HK4.5 cents 2B FRAIKREER
(2011: Nil) per share 458 (=ZF——F ) 109,271 =
Total dividends paid BEIRTAR S 485 111,699 7,285

The directors of the Company do not recommend any payments of final
dividend for the year (2011: HKO.1 cent).

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$11,585,000 (2011: profit of approximately HK$13,094,000) and the
weighted average number of 2,428,255,008 (2011: 2,428,255,008)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the diluted loss per share was
the same as the basis loss per share as the share option had anti-dilutive

effect on the basis loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the diluted earnings per share
was the same as the basic earnings per share as there was no dilutive

potential ordinary share.

ARAREZETEHLRNAFERPRE (=ZF
——F:0.178) -

14. B (E18) &7

BRERREE (BE)BAMNDBEBEARARES
AFE(HE5I8 411,585,000 L (=T ——F:

st K 4913,094,000%8 70 ) R AR F B B #HITEBR
2 n#EF 15 #02,428,255,0080% (=T — — & :

2,428,255,0080% ) 5t & ©

REBEE=—ZE——F+-_A=+—HLEFE"
BRREREA R EESERERNEEZIER
B E eI e R E AN EEAER -

& B
@ %

RBE_Z——F+A=+—HIEFE BHR
VEEAHSERE RERBEIRNEGRE
B AARR o
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REPBERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W5 - ez kil
Equipment
under
Leasehold Office Furniture Computer finance
improvement  equipment  and fixtures software lease Total
&
HEXE HBAZERE BARRE ER&H HERE ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TAL TAL TAT TAT TAL TAL

Cost: RA:
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 RZZ2-——%-f-H:
and 1 January 2012 —2——%+ZA=t-HR
“T-Z4%-A-H - - - - - -
Additions | 204 139 118 126 33 620
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—§+=A=1-A 204 139 118 126 33 620
Accumulated depreciation and R HERAE:
impairment:
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 R=F——%—F—H-"
and 1 January 2012 “T——5+ZA=+-Hk
i = = - - - -
Charge for the year REEZM 14 12 8 7 1 4
At 31 December 2012 RZZE-——#+-B=+-H 14 12 8 7 1 £
Carrying amounts: SR
At 31 December 2012 R=2--£+-A=1+-H 190 127 110 119 2 578
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+ZA=+—-A - - - - - -

Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BREMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. L E Y

HK$'000
FHT
Fair value AFE
At 1 January 2011 WZZE——%—H—H 28,350
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated RiRE 2 E W & WK P ER 2 A FEE N
statement of comprehensive income 3,800
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 RZZE——F+_HA=+—8BK
—2——F—H—H 32,150
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated RG22 EW m MR P ER 2 A FEEG N
statement of comprehensive income 18,250
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB--H+-A=+—H 50,400

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

Property valuations as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were carried
out by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision”) and B.l. Appraisals
Limited (“B.I. Appraisals”) respectively, independent qualified professional
valuers, who hold a recognised professional qualification and have recent
relevant experience. They are not in connection with the Group. Property
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties at similar locations and the current rents

passing and the reversionary income potential of tenancies.

The valuation report for the investment properties as at 31 December
2012 is signed by a director of Peak Vision, who is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation is performed in
accordance with The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards
on Properties (2012 Edition) published by The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, and under generally accepted valuation procedures and

practices.

The valuation report for the investment properties as at 31 December
2011 is signed by a director of B.I. Appraisals, who is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation is performed in
accordance with The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards
on Properties (1st Edition 2005) published by The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, and under generally accepted valuation procedures and

practices.

The Group's investment properties are under long-term leases in Hong
Kong as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

RIBEEHERAARBIEE R AEREENFF
*ﬁ2$‘$ BFEMEREIRARFERAG
B YHESBERARIEREDE-

FARAI 2 FXABRIW B AN BARBLR 2B
EERBEMEMEERTHARAR ([CREZ])
RAREEETEERAE ([REBEEREFTG])E
PRAR—E——FR_FT——F+_A=1+—H
EITYEME - ZEHEMENEERERE-
MEBED2RELSEREMEZKREZ
MHRE BREITOVASRBOERKRAENE

.
TE°

REF——F+-_HA=+—8" &ﬁ%%Zfﬁ@
HEHR ﬁ%Z%%(%ﬁ%\EU—EﬂiEAA:

%fHETETEBAEMES ﬁﬁEﬁZ'P’/J%E@

B (=B — Z ) RARMEERFREHIE
7o
RoF——F+-A=+—H REAVEZEE

HERRBERTEZES (BHAEME2ee
B)EZE -ZMENETEBASMEBGMEM
ZHEGEEN(ZZZRFFE M) RARME
BREF REHIHET.

R-B——FER-"E—F+-A=+—H &

KEZREVMENTERERHHEOTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

17. GOODWILL

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011,

1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011,
1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012

AR E (B

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011

17. &
HK$'000
T T
RZE——F—HA—H —F—%F
tZA=+—8-=F—=-%—A—H
rE=—ZE——%+=-A=+—H 2,939
WZE——F—HA—H ZF——F
t-A=+—R -=—%——-%—H—H
RZZE——F+=-A=+—H =
R=-E——-F+-A=+—HR
—E——F+=-H=+—H 2,939

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the
following cash-generating unit ("CGU"). The carrying amount of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 was allocated as follow:

Investment properties REYE

The recoverable amount for the CGU has been determined based on
value-in-use calculation using five-year cash flow projection approved by
the directors of the Company. The pre-tax discount rate of approximately
3.00% (2011: 8.96%) per annum was applied to the cash flow projection
when assessing the recoverability of the CGU containing goodwill.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
preparation of the cash flow projection. Key assumptions included gross
margin and discount rate which are determined by the directors of the
Company based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The values assigned to key assumptions are based on
historical experience, current market condition, approved forecasts and
consistent with external information sources. Gross margin are budgeted
gross margin. The discount rate used was determined with reference
to weighted average cost of capital of similar companies in the industry
reflected specific risks relating to the industry. The growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The directors of the
Company believe that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts of the CGU to exceed
the recoverable amounts of CGU. During the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011, the directors of the Company determine that there is no

impairment of the goodwill.
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R BEEE

AR R

RETRENS BEEIREEUTREELES
L ([REEEEMN]) RZT—-FR-FT——
FH+ZA=1+—8 BEZEEE (kKRR
BEE) DB T :

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
2,939 2,939

ReELBMzkbeESTARNAREZESH
EZRFReREREA REFRAEENEELE
EoRAERENEcREELEN 2 HE
BER RBeR=BAEAZHAIFMRENR
3.00% (=F——% :8.96%) °

AT REFAYREZBABRK M -EER
REFHARAEETREEERFALEHNS
BREABEZENERUERR - TRBERMA
ZEBENBEZ &R MHIRNMEHETER A
A YRHAINBERKIR - EFKTGEEERN
K-MARAZBREDZREARBE AR Z
IR EARRKAKEE - I RIREITRAR 2%
ERR - BRRAMEBITRERBAKE L
NEERBEITERZFHREEREX -ARFES
HE EFZERRAUESE LR ZEMEEH T
SRR eELABURAEBLRSELE BN
ZAfEeE REE_T——FR-_FT——F
ToA=Z+—HRLEFEER ARAESFERE
I ERAE ©
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REPBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 18. HAZEHIELE S
ENTITIES
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHBT
Share of net assets of jointly controlled entities BEHRERERFEE - =

Details of the Group's jointly controlled entities, which are held indirectly AAFIMZEFEZ AEBARZEHEEBR —F
by the Company as at 31 December 2012 and 2011, are as follows: ——ERZTF——FTA=+—BZFENAT:

Proportion of

Form of nominal value of
business Place of Class of issued share Principal
Name of jointly controlled entity and structure incorporation shares held capital held activities
MEERT
fEEHEREHE EHARpR A 3L 3t B PR R4 5 RAmEELR TERK
Golden Royce Investment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 40% Dormant
ERAREFRAT R A AL BB Eak TEaz
Top Grade Assets Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 50% Dormant
Baifyva RBRARES Eak LE
Upgrade Properties Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 50% Dormant
w32 EREBRES ERR EEER

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's interests A& [ 2 H R T B §8 AR A ABR 2 BT 75
in the jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using equity ~ ERHEALANT -
method is set out below:

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHIT

Current assets mENE E - =
Non-current assets FERBEE - =
Current liabilities mENEE 160,150 160,145
Non-current liabilities ERBEME - =
Income A - =
Expenses FsZ (5) @)
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 A - =

Loss for the year attributable to the Group REBRERFEER - =
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RE

B 5 3R 3R MY =
For the year ended 31 December 2012 EHZE=Z—=

Ftr-RA=t+—BItFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise: FESRMEERE:
Club debentures (note 1) e8£ES (M)
Floating rate notes FEER

Unlisted (note 2)

L™ (KIEE2)

19.

Analysis for reporting purpose as: ERERBZ DT
Non-current assets EREEE
Current assets MBEE

Notes:

M

@

The club debentures classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. At 31 December
2012, the costs of club debentures were HK$120,000 (2011:
HK$220,000) and a full provision for impairment have been made
during the year of 2007. During the year, the cost of club debenture
amounted to HK$100,000 was redeemed.

The unlisted floating rate notes with maturity dates in 2012 and 2014
carry interest at LIBOR plus 0.39% to 0.35% per annum, payable on
quarterly basis.

At 31 December 2012, the unlisted floating rate notes are denominated
in USD and carried at approximately HK$38,072,000, and the balances
with maturity date in 2014 were classified as non-current assets.

At 31 December 2011, the unlisted floating rate notes are denominated
in USD and carried at approximately HK$76,886,000. The balances
with maturity date in 2012 were classified as current assets, and the
remaining balances with maturity date in 2014 were classified as non-
current assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the unlisted floating rate notes are
denominated in USD.
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FETREE

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH T
38,072 76,886
38,072 76,886
38,072 34,978
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

20. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER

Details of the amount due from a shareholder disclosed pursuant to

section 161B of the Companies Ordinance are as follows:

20. FEUW IR R I8

IRIR A FRGI S 161BIR K R 2 UK R IR
IGEUNNE

Maximum

amount

outstanding

during the year

FEANFRR
Name of shareholder MRER AT REEST 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHERT FHAT
Champion Dynasty Limited Champion Dynasty Limited
("Champion Dynasty") ([ Champion Dynasty | ) 278 278 -

The amount due from a shareholder is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The directors of the Company
consider the carrying amount of the amount due from a shareholder

approximate to the fair value.

Champion Dynasty was directly owned by an executive director of the

Company.

21. LOAN TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

On 4 November 2008, the Company, as lender, entered into a loan
agreement with Fancy Mark Limited (“Fancy Mark”), a subsidiary of
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”), as borrower, and
Chinese Estates, as guarantor, to grant a three-year revolving facility of up
to HK$200 million to Fancy Mark at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 1% per

annum (“First Revolving Loan").

On 22 September 2011, the Company, as lender, entered into a new
loan agreement to renew the First Revolving Loan with revised principal
of HK$300 million with the same parties for three-year commenced from
3 November 2011 at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum

(“Second Revolving Loan").

Details of the Second Revolving Loan were set out in the Company's
circular dated 12 October 2011.

& Y B SR SR IR A SR AR ~ S B e 3 4 (B 5 (BE 1
K- ARREERREBRBRRFA L FHELER
FEMRE-

Champion DynastyJyER AR & —BAITEFH#
7RI

21. BT REMB AR ER

RZZBZEN\FE+—AMA - A2A (ERER)
HIEANBEEE ([2EE]) 28R ElFancy Mark
Limited ([Fancy Mark | - {E&RfE7 ) REB (1E&
ERA)FISL — M B - MFancy Mark$ ¢t
—% £ %200,000,000/ 7T Z = £F BA1E IR & 3 At
B ERZFENNERBBRITRAEFREZNE
(I1F—FREER]) -

R-ZE——FHAZ+=H &A7 (EAEH)
BRI AR — DT ER R BNFE—%
BIRE R - ANEE(E5] A300,000,00087C ' =
T——F+— A=A AH=F HERZF
MR ABBBBRITREREIMSE ([E-SER

RREHZHMERBIRAR A B
——#+A+=AzEE-

=\



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

21. LOAN TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY  (contd)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had called
for repayments of the Second Revolving Loan and HK$80,000,000,
HK$80,000,000, HK$95,000,000 and HK$45,000,000 was repaid
on 3 August 2012, 28 September 2012, 30 November 2012 and 12
December 2012 respectively (HK$300,000,000 in aggregate) with
accrued interests. At 12 December 2012, the Second Revolving Loan had
been fully repaid.

21. fETFRIZAME AR E R @)

BHE-_T——F+=-A=+—RHLFE F&2Q
AIE ERKERFE —£1EEE N MM80,000,000
7 JC ~ 80,000,000 JT * 95,000,000/ 7T &
45,000,000 7T (48 5300,000,000/% 7T ) & A
EHFAEESIR=-_E—=—F N A=A -=_F
——FhAAZ+NB ZE——F+—A=+H
;T ——F+ A+ ZHREE-R=T—Z=F
+ZA+ZH EEZRREACEBHRESR-

Maximum
amount
outstanding

during the year

FNIxE
Name of fellow subsidiary EENYNCIEE RNEEDH 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHEIT
Fancy Mark Fancy Mark
— Second Revolving loan —BERREN 300,000 - 300,000

22. LOAN TO A SHAREHOLDER

On 27 September 2012, the Company, as lender, enter into a loan
agreement with Champion Dynasty, a substantial shareholder of the
Group, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen, as an individual guarantor,
and BRRIBEEEKRAAFR AR, as a corporate guarantor, to grant
a three-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$220 million to Champion

Dynasty at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum.

Details of the loan were set out in the Company's announcements
and circular dated 28 September 2012, 8 October 2012, 19 October
2012, 22 October 2012, 1 November 2012, 5 November 2012 and 20

November 2012 respectively.

22 fETIRERER

REZF—=—FAA=+tH AAR ({EAEH)
Hi AN £ @] 2 = B % 5 Champion Dynasty (£ &S
7)) RiREESE (EREABRA) RERREE
EEREREERAR (ERRRERA)FINL—
B E % W Champion Dynastyl2 ft —£ &%
220,000,000/ L2 Z FHABIREREE  HE
R FEMNEABBBRITRERSM25E -

BERFBERIRARRBSHAE=-T—=F 1A
—+N\R ZE——F+ANB -ZZE—=-F+
A+hB ZE—Z—F+A=Z+=ZH ZT—=
F+—F—H —E——F+—HAREBAKR_Z
——F+—AZt+HZATKRBR-

Name of shareholder

Champion Dynasty

DINGS) LIMITED

Maximum
amount
outstanding

during the year

FRERE
e KREEST 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHxT T
Champion Dynasty 220,000 220,000 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade receivables of
approximately HK$8,000 (2011: approximately HK$8,000) comprised
rental receivables billed in advance and settlements from tenants are

expected upon receipts of billings.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit quality
of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to minimise any
credit risk associated with these trade receivables. Rental in respect of

leased properties are payable in advance by the tenants.

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance

for doubtful debts), at the end of the reporting period:

0 — 30 days =z
31 - 60 days =

Total trade receivables as at 31 December 2012 were past due but not

impaired because the amounts are still considered recoverable.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of the

Group's debtors, deposits and prepayments approximate their fair values.

Despite the fact that no collateral is held, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and settlement after the end of the
reporting period, and considered that the amounts are still recoverable

and no allowance for doubtful debts is required.

23. FEURERIA & & M FE B

FEWARTE - 2 RN RIE AN BIEE W E 5518
#78,000/ 7T (ZZ ——4 : 498,000/ L) ' EF
BREBIAAEMBEHAEFENKEIHER IS
Z WA -

AEECHFIABZEERER  UTEEERS
HFZ2EEER-AKEBNEREFIBER H
REEREFUEZERKRESRBZEERR -
HEMEZHSBERBEPBELEX -

FEWE 5508 (HBEREEE) RREHARZE
oM

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

8
8 8

RZE——F+ZR=+T—HEKREZKEEL
HEBHERERE RESZFHANBES
EE{Ek

ARBEERB/ANKEZ BYHRE  2e REN
FRAZEHERENTFEHES-

RBHEALEER AKECHEEE BEE
ALk RN EMRRZ BIRAFEHFE LRS
ZEEDI e EFERERKREE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

24. SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable EUE 3k
Less: Amounts written off as uncollectible

during the year

The Group maintained a defined credit policy in accordance with
respective loan agreements and the Group did not hold any collateral over

these balances.

25. TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES

The time deposits carry interests at prevailing market deposit rates and
mature within one month. The Group does not hold collateral over the

balances.

26. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

There were no trade payables included in creditors and accruals as at 31
December 2012 and 2011.
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W A PO
TANRE 2 5B

2012 2011
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FERT FHE T
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$%@IEM%ZE K 15k £ A BE E 2 (5 B IR

AN S B % F At A TR R m e

25. }TF_HET &fﬁ l\\Dﬁ%

EHERRE R Z WS TR X E
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R—1&

26. R B &L R BIFIA

REAREERARFASEER 28 MIRER

B -

27. REARZEMEB R EIFIA
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& -

28. B RRIA K fE T 3E

RZBE——FR-_FT—F+_A=+—H8
MERE R EF RIEATESEEMNE SRR -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

29. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 20. MEMESFE
AEEREMEHNEHEEE THAZTHRME -
HARF(ZT——F &) pHEMAEMEET
ZEBAFEEEE AT FES52% o ANEE A EIF
REEHRAEEEERE  WERKARE SN
RETSLEm T HE

The Group leased certain of its office equipment under a finance
lease. The lease term is 5 years (2011: Nil). Interest rate underlying all
obligations under a finance lease is fixed at 5.52% per annum. The Group
has an option to purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the
end of the lease terms. No arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

RBERR BEREZARKEREN KB
RIBEWT

At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum lease

payments under finance lease and present value were as follows:

Minimum
lease payments

Present value of
minimum
lease payments

BREHAEMRK
BREHAEMRK ZB{E
31 December 31 December
2012 2012
—E——F —E——fF
+=—HA=t+—-HB +=ZA=+-—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Amounts payable under a finance lease: 1R 1% Bh & FE B e 5 5O -
Within one year —FR 10 6
In more than one year and MA—F ETBBRF
not more than five years 29 26
39 32
Less: future finance charges B BERmEER @) -
Present value of lease obligations HESERE 32 32
Less: Amount due for settlement within BN T ZEARBEHEEZ
12 months (shown under FIE (2IERB A E)
current liabilities) 6
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+ 18 A& EIEE (B 2 5/ IE 26

The Group's obligations under a finance lease are secured by the lessors'

title to the leased asset.

AEEREBEEEIUHBAAEFREESE
EZHEBEFERR-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. fx7<
Number of Share
shares capital
RGEAE BR 2
HK$'000
T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01E T2 T AR
Authorised: VETE A :
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011, RZZ2——%F—H—H"
1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 —E——f+ZA=+—8H"
—E——F—H—H
kZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H 80,000,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011, R_ZT——%—H—H"
1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 —E2——%+ZA=+—8H"
—E——F—H—H
E—Z——F+-_A=+—H 2,428,255,008 24,282
31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 3. EERIARE

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets LA N A 7S5 @A AN SR & BRI I 38 4 R &5 BRI 1
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the current and BB TBRLEHEAE (BREE) M HE

prior reporting periods: g):
Property,
plantand  Investment Tax
equipment properties losses Total
ERE: 1
SES REME BIEEE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET TET
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F—H—H - 106 - 106
Charged to the consolidated statement of Riza 2EKEBR
comprehensive income kR - 1 - 1
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 RZZ——%
+ZA=+—RBk
—T——%—H—H = 107 = 107
Charged/(credit) to the consolidated RirE E2ERE TR
statement of comprehensive income e,/ (& 30) 53 (90) - (37)
At 31 December 2012 R-B——F
+=A=+-H 53 17 - 70

For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement of AZ2F4GRAHBRAHEE & TEREHBEEERL
financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets have been  EAEE (L5
offset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (contd)

At 31 December 2012,
HK$692,395,000 (2011: HK$692,901,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax assets have been recognised due to the

the Group has unused tax losses of

unpredictability of future profit streams. All unused tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 February 2002
("2002 Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
Directors and eligible employees. Pursuant to the terms of the 2002
Scheme, the Company may grant share options to Directors and full time
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$10 per grant. The
subscription price for the shares under the 2002 Scheme shall be a price
determined by the directors of the Company being at least the higher
of the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant, or the average closing price of the
shares stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. Share options
granted are exercisable at any time during a period to be notified by the
directors of the Company but limited to a maximum period of ten years
after the date the share options are granted. Share options granted should

be accepted within 21 days from date of offer.

Under the 2002 Scheme, there were no outstanding share options at the
beginning and at the end of the year, and no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled, or lapsed during the year. The 2002 Scheme expired
on 14 February 2012.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme") pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special

general meeting of the Company held on 11 October 2012.

The major terms of the New Share Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:
(@) The primary purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their

contribution to the Group.

(b) The New Share Option Scheme will expire on 10 October 2022.

1. BREMIBEBEE ®

R_E——HF+-_fF=+—HB AEHAH
EHERTBEMNENABAZHIBERE A
692,395,000/ 7T ( = F ——4F : 692,901,000/8
JL) e AR AR RETE R B % 35 ) 3RR - iU S @
MIERRERIBEE -FTARB A ZHIEEE A
FERR HA 458 o

B B AT &

‘f’fEEl%iW—IEﬁ%HX%
CTEEMRERE
EREEREE -BRE_FTT_FHI KN
ARARARERI0B T Z KERA R B KEH
BRARAIZEERZBEEREAREARAE
BRZERE  —TE_FA8ZBRHRBER
RRBESERE  MERERRMNRE L B AR
R ERERMAR ZBH ESBN R EZER
HEMAAELEXEREBIAERRERMAT
ZUHEFHE(UNBSRE) ERHZEBKR
BRARBEENG 2 PN ATRER 1T - HEX
HE s RABBER L BEES TFRR R
ez BRENERE A EF 2R HER-

BE—ST_Fitdl AFEFORFRITER
P& 1M R ATE - AR E OB AT sEEH Sk
BRBRZERE  — ST _FHEER =T —=
FZ_ATHBER-

RARBBEAR-_ZE——_F+A+—BE1TZ
BRFRHAE LRB —HEBRERRA—
AT E AR 8 ([FTERER ) -

B R 8l 2 TR IGFBA M T :

(@) HMBREAIESERAGERZEEAAE
BFEZ BB MK SR ER S E R -

—ZF+A+AHE

(b) FEEESEER =B
e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)

©

The eligible participants include:

(1) any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director and non-executive director) of any member
of the Company, any entity in which any member of the

Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity");

(2) any independent non-executive directors of any member of

the Group or any Invested Entity;

(3) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity;

(4) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(5) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other support (technical or otherwise) to any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity;

(6) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(7) any adviser or consultant (professional or otherwise) to any
area of business or business development of any member of

the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(8) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the

development and growth of the Group.

and, for the purpose of the New Share Option Scheme, an offer
may be made to any company controlled by one or more eligible

participants.

32.

©

A RE ST 2l ()

BERSEERRE:
(1) ANREMEAKE R B AL EE [
REBRBFERAER 2 EAER
(AR ERA) ZEMEE (TR
EERIRE BEREMRTEER
FHITESR)

2 AKEBEAKERARREMAKRE
REVZEABILIERTES:

3 AEBEEFAKERRAREMAKRE
NEIHEE Y IR AR 2 E A
&

4) AEBEEFAKERRARERMARE
REIZEFMEFS

(5) ANEBEAKERRTEMMPAIRE
NEIRHEIA R EM T AR (F
EEBRMEE) MEMALRA

A
Cliii}
al;

6) AKBEFAKERRAREMAKRE
RAEZEAIBRR KA R BERKE
RAIHEFFIRE R B EITZEM
EHZEAFEA

7)) AKRBEFAKERRREMAKRE
REAZEMEBBREXEBERT
H 2 (E A AALER (TREh B
EXEME) K

(8) MNUaE FEBBERHMERLIHEN
T BAKRBZEREKEAEL
(RATREME ) B B2 fEfa] E A 48 5l
BRIGIEE

i L 57 B8 A A AT BIM = - IR Al A — & s
LEER2EEZH ZEMARIRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)

(d) Maximum number of shares:

(e

®

(i)  The overall limit on the number of share which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group must not

exceed 30% of the Shares in issues from time to time; and

(i) Subject to the above overall limit, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme and all other
share option scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the New Share Option Scheme (the “General Scheme
Limit"). The Company may refresh the General Scheme Limit
subject to approval of the shareholders in general meeting,
provided that the General Scheme Limit as refreshed must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of the

approval of the refreshed limit.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by
the grantee upon acceptance of the share options. Share options
may be exercised at any time during the period to be determined
and identified by the board of directors to each grantee at the time
of making an offer for the grant of share options, but in any event
no later than ten years from the date of grant but subject to the

early termination of the New Share Option Scheme.

The subscription prices for shares under the New Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the board of directors,

provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for trade in one or more

board lots of the shares on the offer date;
(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the offer date; and

(iiiy  the nominal value of the Company's shares.

32.

(d)

(e)

®

RIS REET 2 ()
Bin 2 RSB

() REFEREGIRASEZEMA
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2 (AR (8 R 17 150 S AR A M 1T (S BRF 7]
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MERETIERBE A EITR
210% ([—ARETEIPREE]) - RNA
AIATRIRER A S R EBLEZ 1B
T EF—MRETEIREE  EEEH 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)

®

W)

®

0)

(0

Share options granted should be accepted within 21 days from date

of grant.

Share options granted vested at the date of grant.

An offer of the grant of a share option shall be made to an eligible
participant in writing in such from as the board may from time
to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of 21 days from the offer
date, provided that no such offer shall be made after the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date or the termination of the New

Share Option Scheme.

The share options are valid for a period from 11 October 2012 to
10 October 2022 (both days inclusive) and can be exercisable in
full or in part. The share options can be granted and/or exercised

since 11 October 2012 until they are exercised or lapsed.

The Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the
Board may at any time terminate the operation of the New Share
Option Scheme and in such event no further share options will be
offered or granted but in all other respects the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.
Share options complying with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules which are granted during the life of the New Share
Option Scheme and remain unexpired immediately prior to the
termination of the operation of the New Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue

after the termination of the New Share Option Scheme.

On 18 December 2012, the Company granted an aggregate of

168,000,000 share options, carrying the right to subscribe for the ordinary

shares at HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company, under the

New Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 11 October

2012 to director, and certain of its employees and consultants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #iZ2=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd) 32. BIRERE @

Details of the share options are as follows: ZEBRE BT

Share Fair value

option type  Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REAHzZ

BREER Ede =R TEHE TEE A¥E

2012 18 December 2012 18 December 2012 to 10 October 2022 HK$0.315 HK$0.186

2012 —E——F+-_A+N\B Z—ZE——-F+-_AF+N\BZE 0.315%8 7T 0.186/8 7T

=+ A+H

The fair value of the share options granted on 18 December 2012 R-ZT——F+-_AF+N\BEHZEREAT
is determined using a binomial option pricing model, by Peak Vision {EJir 8T EAR QAR —EA HETER
Appraisals Limited. The following table lists the significant inputs to the RETE - FREFIRELBHAAE 2 EEEH

model used at the date of grant. A28 o

Share option type 2012  HERRESER 2012
Grant date share price HK$0.315 it A B (E 0.315% 7T
Exercise price HK$0.315  fT{E(E 0.315% 7T
Expected volatility 93.04%  TEERIKIE 93.04%
Share option life 9.8 years  FEAXHEFHI 9.84F
Dividend yield 1.504% fREX 1.504%
Risk-free interest rate 0.665%  f& & b Al &= 0.665%

The expected volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously ¥ # &# & B (D @ RIT & = R 8 2 38 2% 18
compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of historical JIABEBRERNDEEREE T 2 Gt oA

daily share price movements over the last ten years. Ao
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd) 32. R EETE @)

The following share options were outstanding under the New Share & AFTEEMIERTEIE WA TE 2 BRELT
Option Scheme during the year:

Name of Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding
categories as at during during during during as at 31
of participants SHEEERER 1 January 2011 the year the year the year the year December 2012
R-B——fF R=B-Z=F
—-A—-H +=A=+-H
i RATHE FRRH ERTE ERER EREM i RATHE
Director =
Cheng Hau Yan B = 24,000,000 = = = 24,000,000
Consultants 4G
In aggregate FeE - 72,000,000 - - = 72,000,000
Employees {31
In aggregate it - 72,000,000 - - - 72,000,000
- 168,000,000 = = - 168,000,000

Exercisable at the end ~ RF &[T
of the year 168,000,000

Weighted average IEFHTHEE

exercise price HK$0.3158 7T - - HK$0.3158 7T

The fair value of share options granted during the year ended 31 REE-_ZT——F+_A=1+—HBIEFE KL
December 2012 was approximately HK$31,248,000 (2011: Nil) which &% # 2 R F(EH A31,248,0008 7T (=T ——
had been recognised as share-based payment expenses during the year. F: /) BERFARRBAREER -

At 31 December 2012, an aggregate of 168,000,000 share optons K =T — - F + = A =+ — B & #
were exercisable. No share options granted under the New Share Option 168,000,000/ & & #E /] F 11 - B Z = F
Scheme were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2012. ——FTZA=+—RBILFEE BERERET

RN BREY mERTE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z——F+=-A=+—HILFE

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group did not have any material

capital commitments and contingent liabilities.

34. OPEARATING LEASES

The Group as lessee
At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

33. EANEERAARBIE

R=E——FR=_ZT—F+=-_A=+—H" 'K
SETETMNERAEREERIAEE-

4. REHE

REBE[EEA
RBERR  AEEEFBHEEME 2 T A HEHE
KREHETZARSEHEOMNFAELT

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FHET

Within one year —F NI 954 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEZE L F A EH

(BREEMFEEA) 715 -

1,669 =

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in Hong
Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO Scheme”)
which had ceased on 6 August 2012 and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme"). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme
are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging from 5% to
10%, depending upon the length of service of the employees. From 1
December 2000, newly joined employees are compulsorily required to
join the MPF Scheme. The employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of approximately HK$76,000 (2011: approximately HK$52,000)
represented contributions payable to these schemes by the Group for the

year.

B RAE AT &

RNEE R EB B R T HFCRIRET 8] 2 B3R IRET
2 ([BZERKGFE (BERZZE—Z=F AKX
B# L) RagklEREe 8 ([RERETE) -
N5 B A B R AR ET B VE B B H B 2 5% =
10%HH (R TFEERBKFE) BH_ZZTTF
T A—HBEMARERZHEEHNES NS
Boitgl-BEREEBHF RBESTEEAIA
51| BA 2 bE R A 5K o

R 2ERERENG 2 B8 A% A76000
BT (ZZT——4F : 4952,00087T) ' BIAREBER

REEZRZFTEIEA 2 HK
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=ZF——F+_A=+—HItFE

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group had the following material transactions with related parties during

the year:

Interest income on loan to a fellow subsidiary
(note a)

Interest income on loan to a shareholder
(note a)

Management fee paid to a fellow subsidiary
(note b)

Loan to a shareholder (note c)

Expenses paid on behalf of a shareholder

Interest receivable from a shareholder

Share-based payment expenses granted to
director's spouse

Salaries and other allowances paid to

director's spouse

Contributions to retirement benefit scheme paid to

director's spouse

Notes:

R

36.

BEAEEALRS

BEeBHRREMHIEREEN ARER
REBEBEALTETUTERRS:

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
ETREMBRARTERZ
B A (Ffzta) 3,256 2,843
& TREERZFEWA
(FMfsEa) 594 _
RZRME AN ERE
(PfF5ED) 40 90
ETIREER (MEc) 220,000 =
KRR 2 X 53 -
JFE U AR 3R 1B 225 =
BKTEZRB2
FR o EL AR 57 4,464 =
MESREBXMZ
e RHEHAMERL 321 =
mESRBIELERE
RIREFEHE 5 =

B

a) Interest income was charged on outstanding balances during the year,  a)

details are set out in notes 21 and 22.

b)  Management fee was based on the terms mutually agreed by both  b)

parties.

)  As at 31 December 2012, the Group has lent shareholder-Champion  ¢)
Dynasty with the sum of HK$220,000,000 which bearing interest rate
at HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum. Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen, who is the

executive director and the chairman of the Board of the Company, also

acts as an individual guarantor in respect of the loan to a shareholder.

Details are set out in note 22.

Balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with related parties at the end of reporting period

are set out in notes 20, 21, 22, 26 and 27.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in note 11.

DINGS) LIMITED
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MEWARIZF AR AR E - BN
FE21/%22 ©

ERBRIEE T BEARGE Z RRETE

RZT—=—F+=-A=+—8 ~&EEE TR
% Champion Dynasty—2£220,000,000/% 7T &
R ZEETRENEBBBERITRERR
M25EHE -ARRATESTHRESTSER
RIEREEETEESE TRRER 2 EAER
A BB BEE R 22

HEREALZRE &R

RB|EHR - BEEA L Z X B ERFBERNH

5520 221 222 2627

TEEBEAEME:

TZEBAESMERNMEINTARKE-
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that a complete list
of the particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31

December 2012 and 2011 which principally affected the results or assets

of the Group.

Name of

subsidiary

MEARAE

Grow Wealth Company Ltd
(Business name:
Grow Wealth Property
Investment Limited)
(X% Grow Wealth
Property Investment
Limited )

G-Prop Services Limited

Minkind Development Limited
ZEERBRAA
Golden Circle Investment

Limited
ETREBRAA

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at the

end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting period.

Place of
incorporation/

operation

i)
B

Republic of
Liberia/
Hong Kong
FLEB D
HAE,
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

BB

Class of
share/
registered
capital held
FrispR{n,/
&R
B

Registered

ikl

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Fully paid
share capital/
registered

capital

BrRE
HMER

US$1

17T

HK$2

2B

HK$2

2B

HK$2

2B

37. T ENBATFER

ARREEZERRIHEHMHBLAAENES
RIEBRITR MU TRAJBER T ——F
RZBE——F+_RA=+—HUEAREE X5
REERERVEZHBAR-

Proportion of
nominal value of
paid-up capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

RREFEHERE
AMEAEHEZEDLL
Directly Indirectly
HE )

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Principal

activities

ETREK

Property

investment

Investment and
finance
BERBME

Property
investment

MERE

Provision of
services

RERS

R E ARSI E R AREMERE LEMER
ABEITEADABERZEBES-
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38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The Company's statement of financial position at 31 December 2012 and

2011 are as follows:

Non-current asset
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amount due from a shareholder
Loan to a fellow subsidiary
Loan to a shareholder
Prepayment and other receivables
Time deposits and bank balances

Current liabilities
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Accruals and other payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital (note 30)
Share premium
Share options reserve
(Accumulated losses) retained profits
— Proposed final dividend
— Others

Total equity

Non-current liability
Amounts due to subsidiaries

OLDINGS) LIMITED

Annual Report 2012

38. NR R REK 2 B #

ARAR-E-——FR=F——F+ZA=t—

Bz HBRRsREzLT
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT T T
FRBEE
HEARRE 17,870 61,914
REBEE
JiE U A% 3R 3R 278 =
ETREMBARER - 300,000
e FIREER 220,000 =
TEAS FRIE K E At B UGN IE 469 958
TE BB7F A KSR 1T 45 4 81,151 69,944
301,898 370,902
REBEE
KRB REIER A B ZOE - 3
X8R RM B R RRIE - 87
FE TR IE K E b FE 5 FUIE 828 352
828 442
REBEEFE 301,070 370,460
EERERRBER 318,940 432,374
BARE G
A& A (B 7E30) 24,282 24,282
f&1D %= B 351,638 351,638
AE R AR S 31,248 =
(RErER)RE &
—BURARHER B - 2,428
—H A (92,528) 53,688
BAEREE 314,640 432,036
FFRBEE
RAEMBARRA 4,300 338
318,940 432,374
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38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

(@

(b)

©

(d)

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(cont'd)

The HKICPA has issued the new HKFRSs which are effective for the
Company's financial year beginning 1 January 2012. The application
of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and
financial position for the current or prior accounting periods have

been prepared and presented.

The Company has undertaken to provide necessary financial
resources to support the future operations of the subsidiaries. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the subsidiaries

are financially resourceful in settling obligations.

The carrying amount of the investment in subsidiaries is reduced
to their recoverable amounts which are determined by reference to
the estimation of future cash flows expected to be generated from

the respective subsidiaries.

Except for an amount due from subsidiary of HK$5,688,000
(2011: HK$40,852,000) is interest-bearing, the amounts due
from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

repayment terms.

Loss of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately HK$36,945,000 (2011: profit of
approximately HK$4,943,000).

39. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-cash investing and financing

activities which are not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash

flows:—

In the current year, the Group acquired approximately HK$33,000

of equipment under finance lease (2011: Nil).

38. NR R SARNN K 2 & 1

(@

(b)

©

(d)

(&)

EEEHMASERTREARAE_F
——F—A-BRRZIBBFEREERZH
FEVBREER - EAMBTEVHRS
HAWEH ARG HAEIBESAREE
BRMBAN Z mE R 2577 ANEREM
BERTE-

ARBIEABRKAFHBER AZH
MBRBZRREE ARREERR
EMBARAARHUBERBETAME:

MEBARKREREERSEEALRDE
BHOARAUKEESEN2EEBKRE XMW
BRABZEFAREEREERE -

B B 88 A B R R A $405,688,0008 T (==
— — 4 140,852,000/ 7T) Z KB E T B
SNMIBARIRR (REWMBATRINIE) R
AR 8 R A [ E R K

BE_T——+_A=+—RHIEE"
A A BB 4 536,945,00008 T (==
—— & 5 F#94,943,000/ T ) °

39. EWER 5

AEBFRETATAAERGARERER R Z
FRERENMERY:

RAFEE AEED B E 33,0008 T
MEHERB(ZE——F F) -
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

a)

b)

o)

d)

e)

Dr. David Chain Chi Woo resigned as the independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the nomination committee, the
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee

of the Company with effect from 1 January 2013.

Mr. Leung Yun fai was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee in place of Dr. David Chain Chi Woo with effect from 1

January 2013.

G-Prop Services Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability, has
been granted a money lenders licence by the Licensing Court in

Hong Kong on 15 January 2013.

Mr. Lin Jiang was appointed as the non-executive director of the

Company with effect from 1 February 2013.

On 7 February 2013, the lender, G-Prop Services Limited, which
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a loan agreement with Yuehai Trading Company Limited, the
borrower, pursuant to which the lender had agreed to lend and
the borrower had agreed to borrow a one year term loan in the
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 at the interest of 5% per
annum. The loan agreement was guaranteed by the guarantor,
Dongguan Yuehai Enterprise Investment Company Limited (52
Mt BEEFEEFRAR), pursuant to the deed of guarantee
dated 7 February 2013 executed by the lender and the guarantor.
Details of the provision of the loan were set out in the Company's

announcement dated 7 February 2013.

Mr. Huang Liang, Mr. Mai Yang Guang and Mr. Yau Chi Ming
were appointed as the independent non-executive directors, the
members of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company with effect from 20
February 2013.

Mr. Leung Yun Fai resigned as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company, and Mr. Yau Chi Ming was appointed
as the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company in

place of Mr. Leung Yun Fai with effect from 20 February 2013.
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40. HEHRREFA

a)

b)

9

d)

e)

REBELERZERRERZESIREN
REBERBE a-T—=F—HF—H
FEAER -

KRR RBRBEEBEEEMK L 2 2B B
EBR A A]G-Prop Services LimitedE2 1 =
— =5 AT HEBEFBRBEER TN
(EUNLEE

MIGEEEZERBARARIERNTES B
—E—=F_F—HEBEM-

R=ZZE—=F=-AtH Ex®AG-Prop
Services Limited (A AR HEZENE R
A BEERAN B E AR A A E R
24 Bt BRAREZEL BERARE
& AZK % %840,000,00078 7T * FF R A5E
ZRE—FEFR-BRBEERAEERAR
EMREEEREERATIN - —=F
ZAtBEIZEREN BEXBEHE
RAER - BRAREERZFE  B2HAN
ARBMA-_ZT—=F_"A+tBzEK-

EatE EHATEREERLERS
ERARRZELIFNTES FXES
g HHMEEERREEEEREKE B
—E—=F_A-tHRBEN-

RHEBESEEREARAREEZESE
BmEEREEREERARRFRRE
BEFFUREREELEE B2 —=
F_A-+HBERK:
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

41.

(cont'd)

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai resigned as the non-executive director of the

Company with effect from 8 March 2013.

Mr. Lam Yat Fai resigned as the independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the audit committee, the member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the

Company, with effect from 8 March 2013.

Mr. Leung Yun Fai resigned as the independent non-executive
director, the chairman of remuneration committee, the member
of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the

Company with effect from 8 March 2013.

Mr. Yau Chi Ming, who is the independent non-executive director
of the Company, the chairman of the nomination committee, the
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee,
was re-designated as the chairman of the audit committee in
place of Mr. Lam Yat Fai. Mr. Huang Liang, who is the independent
non-executive director of the Company, the member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee in place of Mr. Leung Yun Fai and Mr. Mai Yang Guang,
who is the independent non-executive director of the Company,
the member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee, was appointed as the chairman of
the nomination committee in place of Mr. Yau Chi Ming. The above

mentioned appointments were effective from 8 March 2013.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2013.

40.

41.

Exgcn=

WEHREEIE @

MAFEEEBERR A ZIENITESFR
% E_FE-—=F=ZANBELK-

MEEEEEREARR ZBIYIFNTE
£ ERZERIR FHMZESRIREER

BEgXBRE BT =F=A/\BE
BEZTe

REBLELCBHEARARBZBIIFNTE
= FHEZEBEXIR BERZBERRESRZR
BEeXRERB BT =F=A/\RAE

o

i3

H:F
>>g|_

EFREE CRAEARRIZBYIENTE
= REZESIR BRZESRTMWE
BEKE)ERAERERZEEEFUR
BEMBBEEZBM -ERiE GRAR
RAIZBUIFNTES BREEE  HH
ZEERIREREESENE ) BEREEARS
HZ B & & 8 AR S B8 5%k 4 2 Bis

MG E (RAKRRAR 2B IENT
B2 BEZLEEe FTWEEeRIERZEER
eXE)EEEZARREBZESERUNR
BEEALEEZBMN ERZEAHBEZT
—=F=ANBREEK-

RETRGESMB®mE

—=F=A-t+\B#tEREK

BT EEEMBERE -




Five-Year Financial Summary

TFEUBHRE

AEEBRERF G BERAERENT

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT TAT TR TAT
(restated)
(&=71)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b))
(FizE(@)) (M b)) (FzE®))
Results ES
Revenue WA 8,370 8410 8,483 9,099 6,790
(Loss) profit before tax from REBELE XK 2RBA
continuing operations (B#8) &R (11,625) 13,144 (879) 12,267 (5731)
Income tax credit (expense) FIEREM (L) 40 (50) (980) 379 2,690
(Loss) profit for the year from REERERBLEEKL
continuing operations (B#8)EH (11,585) 13,094 (1,859) 12,646 (3,041)
Loss for the year from TEERECKRERZEY
discontinued operations BB - = = - (1813)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to KARERANEEAEE
owners of the Company (B#8)&EH (11,585) 13,094 (1,859) 12,646 (4,854)
(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) Bk (BR) 27 G&fl)
Basic HEX (0.48) 0.54 (0.08) 056 (0.24)
Diluted -5 (0.48) 0.54 (0.08) 056 (0.24)
Final and interim dividend per share BRABRPHARE
(HK cents) (710) 0.1 02 02 0.1 =
Special dividend per share (HK cents) BRERIRE (5L) 4 - - - -
At 31 December
R+=B=t-8
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THT TAT TAT TAT
(restated)
(m=E5)
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (b))
(FizE()) (MzE®b)) (FzE®))
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Total assets RERE 399,993 488,686 487944 486,772 301,330
Total liabilities BfRAHE (1,547) (1,150) (1,992) (1,948) (3,952)
Total assets and liabilities EERBREERE 398,446 487536 485,952 484,824 297378
Net asset value per share attributable to -~ KA FJHEE AJE(E
owners of the Company (HKS) gREEFE(BT) 0.16 020 020 020 0.15
Number of shares issued BERTRMEE 2,428,255,008 2428255008 2,428,255008 2,428255008 2,028,255,008
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFEPBHRE

Notes:

@

(b)

Figures for year 2009 have been adjusted to reflect the changes in
accounting policies as described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements of 2010.

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
two years ended 31 December 2008 have not been restated upon the
early adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendment) “Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets” as the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the restatement would involve costs not in proportion to the benefit
of the Group.

GEE

(b)

“EEAGIBBDTEE UER-F-F
FRAMBREM AL, EHEELD -

HARARBEERRBEI S R RARERE
B2 MBATKEL BT ERRERRAETES
FHERIZE125E (BRTA) NEERIA : @ 4E
HEE|MBEBE—ZTTN\F+_A=+—H
IMEFEZXE BERABRRESY-
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Summary of Investment Properties

REVNEHME

Particulars of the Group's properties, all of which are wholly-owned, at 31

December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

o 26

1. 25 car parking spaces on
various floors and 5 adjoining spaces
at the 2nd and 4th floors
of the Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre,

No. 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBET

& L7856
REBIRITBIEH L
H[Z 2 25EE L &

212 BRARE 7 5 1[E Bt 24 2=

2. 6 car parking spaces and
carport basement of
No. 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
BEEPR
ESEW N ELEL
61E B b BB {5 B 355

DINGS) LIMITED
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A2 2 REANEHBENT :
REME

Category of
the lease term

GRSz

Lot number

1t B 4 5%

Certain parts or shares of Long
and in the Remaining Portion K7
of Inland Lot No. 2818,

The Remaining Portion of

Section D of Inland Lot No. 2818,

The Remaining Portion of

Section F of Inland Lot

No. 2817 and Section M of

Inland Lot No. 2817

A ER 55281857 BRER »

P R 5281857 DERBARR

A B 5528175k FER BRER DA I

W ER ZE281 75 MR 2 & T BB D skt %8

Certain parts or shares of and Long
in Sections A and B and the = H
Remaining Portion of Section C

and the Remaining Portion

of Marine Lot No. 101, the

Remaining Portion of Section A

of Marine Lot No. 102, Sections C

of Marine Lot No. 103 and the

Remaining Portion of Inland Lot

No. 514

IS ER E1015RAR K

BER LA R CERBRER ~ S5 1015k BRER

BB E1025RARERER -

VB 5530 B 25 103557 CER A &2

MR FS 14/ BB 2 E TR D XM ER

REBR B —_FR_T——FFT_A=1—

Usage
Rz

Parking
v

Parking
B
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